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Corporate Information
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors as now constituted is listed below:

Executive Directors
Mr. Chen Jinshan
Mr. Wang Jia Jun

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Wong Hon Kit

Dr. Liu Yongping

Mr. Ho Man

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Wang Jia Jun
Mr. Yu Tat Chi Michael

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Yu Tat Chi Michael

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Mr. Wong Hon Kit (Chairman)
Dr. Liu Yongping

Mr. Ho Man

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Wong Hon Kit (Chairman)

Dr. Liu Yongping

Mr. Ho Man
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PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of Communications Co., Limited
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Central, Hong Kong
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HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
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Dear Shareholder:

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Wanjia
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to
present the audited financial results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 March 2019.

On 11 October 2013, the Company was spun-off from Hua Xia
Healthcare Holdings Limited (“Hua Xia”, now known as Good
Fellow Healthcare Holdings Limited (stock code: 8143)) to list on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the

"Stock Exchange”) by way of introduction.

On 2 March 2017, the shares held by Hua Xia has been
distributed by Hua Xia to its shareholders. Since then, the
Company is no longer the subsidiary of Hua Xia.

Over the years, the Group has been holding the operation vision
of “Honesty and morality go first”, adhere to the operation
objective of “Benefiting the society and the populace” to provide
health products and services as its mission, conduct capital
expansion as its measures, and supported by corporate culture
construction. The Group’s market size is expanding gradually and
is building a leading service brand image within the industry to
become one of the leading medical enterprises in Fujian with core

competitiveness.

RESULT FOR THE YEAR

The Group continued to focus on pharmaceutical wholesale and
distribution business, pharmaceutical retail chain business and
provides hemodialysis treatment and consultancy service in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

The pharmaceutical retail chain business was discontinued during

the year.
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Management’s Statement
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Total revenue from continuing operations of the Group for
the year was approximately HK$96.480 million, representing
a decrease of approximately 72.67% over last year. The gross
profit was approximately HK$16.032 million. The loss for the year
attributable to the owners of the Company was approximately
HK$66.592 million.

Total revenue generated from pharmaceutical wholesale and
distribution business for the year ended 31 March 2019 was
approximately HK$82.154 million, representing a decrease of

approximately 74.23% as compared to 2018.

The revenue contributed by the hemodialysis treatment and
consultancy service business for the year ended 31 March 2019

was approximately HK$14.326 million.

OUTLOOK AND FUTURE PROSPECTS

Despite the fact that the Group has been making effort and
hoping the pharmaceutical retail chain business could turn
around, the financial performance of which could not meet the
expectation of the Board. In August 2018, the Company was
approached by the purchaser, which showed its interest in the
pharmaceutical retail chain business. Hence the pharmaceutical
retail chain business was completely disposed of on 15 November
2018, the Group will continue to be principally engaged in (i)
pharmaceutical wholesale and distribution business; and (ii)
provision of hemodialysis treatment and consultancy service
business in the PRC. In future, the Company will centralize its
resources in developing the Hemodialysis Business. The Group will
look to further develop its Hemodialysis Business through organic

growth and acquisitions.

Looking forward, the Group will focus on developing such
segment through establishment of new self-operated centers in
the PRC so as to expand its operating scale and further penetrate
in the market. For this purpose, a business development team has
been set up and has performed initial feasibility studies on the

market potential in various cities or regions in the PRC.
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The Group believes that the demand for hemodialysis services
in the Chinese market is still far from being met and has great
potential for development. Based on the Group's experience
and strength in the medical field, the further exploration and
expansion from our existing businesses to the continuously rising
hemodialysis sector will become the driving force for building our
further influence in the market and create better return to the

shareholders.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to the management team and staff for their tireless
dedicated that helps fuel the Group’s healthy development. In
addition, | would also like to thank all our shareholders, business
partners and customers for their continuous support. We will
continue to devote unwavering efforts to reap promising returns

for all parties.

Chen Jinshan
Executive Director
Hong Kong, 27 June 2019
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Summary of the results of the Group for the financial year ended
31 March 2019 is as follows:

o Total revenue from continuing operations was approximately
HK$96.480 million (2018: approximately HK$353.014
million), representing approximately 72.679% of decrease
over 2018.

° Gross profit from continuing operations was approximately
HK$16.032 million (2018: approximately HK$39.189 million),
representing approximately 59.09% of decrease over 2018.

° The loss from operations from continuing operations
was approximately HK$43.388 million (2018: profit of
approximately HK$0.603 million).

o Loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company
was approximately HK$66.592 million (2018: approximately
HK$55.586 million).

o The Group had total cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$28.816 million as at 31 March 2019
(2018: approximately HK$91.922 million).

o The board does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2019 (2018: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

In August 2018, the Group came across an opportunity to dispose
of the pharmaceutical retail chain business at a consideration of
HK$49 million. The transaction was completed in November 2018.
The sale proceeds were used to repay part of the Group's loan.
That business was discontinued in operation.

In October 2018, the Group acquired Wuhua Yongke Kidney
Hemodialysis Company Limited* (“Wuhua”).The principal activity
of Wuhua is provision of hemodialysis treatment service through
self-operated hemodialysis treatment centers in the PRC.

# English translations of official Chinese names are for identification
purpose only
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In March 2019, the Group acquired Wuchuan Zhining
Hemodialysis Company Limited* (“Wuchuan”). The principal
activity of Wuchuan is provision of hemodialysis treatment service

through self-operated hemodialysis treatment centers in the PRC.

This year, the Group continues business on pharmaceutical
wholesale and distribution business and hemodialysis treatment

and consultancy service in the PRC.

The pharmaceutical retail chain business was discontinued during

the year.

Segment information

During the year, the revenue of the Group was principally
generated from continuing operations: (1) pharmaceutical
wholesale and distribution business and (2) Hemodialysis
treatment and consultancy service business in the PRC. Financial
information in respect of these operations is presented in Note 7
to the consolidated financial statements.

Financial information in respect of the discontinued
pharmaceutical retail chain business is presented in Note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Continuing Operations

1) Pharmaceutical wholesale and distribution business
The Group has a large and broad customer base through
our distribution network in Fujian Province in the PRC. The
Group distributes pharmaceutical products to our customers
located principally in the Fujian Province. Our customers
can be categorized into three types namely hospitals and
healthcare institutions, distributor customers and end
customers such as companies operating pharmaceutical
retail chain stores, independent pharmacies, and outpatient
departments of community hospitals, healthcare service
stations and clinics.

L English translations of official Chinese name are for identification

purpose only
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As mentioned in the 2017/18 annual report, in the early part
of 2018, the medical reform policy further controlled the
pharmaceutical costs in public hospitals in Fujian Province
which reduced the overall size of the pharmaceutical
distribution business in public hospitals. In addition, the
distribution policy broke the original rules that essential
medicines in public hospitals in Fujian Province were only
distributed by 10 wholesale companies, thereby causing
material adverse impact in the operation and its overall
performance of the Group in pharmaceutical wholesale and
distribution business. As a result, revenue from this segment
was approximately HK$82.154 million (2018: HK$318.809
million) representing a 74.23% decrease. And the loss from
this segment was approximately HK$1.988 million (2018:
HK$4.864 million), representing a 59.13% decrease.

Hemodialysis treatment and consultancy service
business

To diversify the Group’s business, the Group had acquired a
new business which is engaged in hemodialysis treatment
and consultancy service business (the “Hemodialysis
Business”) through Mingxi County Trading Company
Limited* in March 2017. In respect of the Hemodialysis
Business, the Group currently operates jointly-operated
hemodialysis treatment centers under co-operations
contracts and owns several self-operated hemodialysis
treatment centers. Revenue from this segment was
approximately HK$14.326 million (2018: HK$34.205
million), representing a decrease of 58.12%. And loss from
this segment was approximately HK$37.813 million (2018:
profit of HK$12.455 million).

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the loss was mainly
due to an impairment loss of goodwill of approximately
HK$35.459 million which was attributable to fierce
competition from other hospitals in the hemodialysis
business.

English translations of official Chinese names are for identification
purpose only
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Discontinued Operation

Pharmaceutical retail chain business

To improve the Group's operating result, the Group tried its best
to concentrate its resources to strengthen the competitiveness
of the pharmaceutical retail chain business. Revenue and loss
from the segment of pharmaceutical retail chain business for
approximately 8 months was approximately HK$160.942 million
and HK$7.570 million respectively. Despite the improvement
resulted from the effort of the management under such a difficult
business environment, the results of the pharmaceutical retail
chain business were still not satisfactory, thus the Group decided
to dispose of the pharmaceutical retail chain business because
of its weak profitability and the fact that the Group was facing a
substantial financial pressure. In August 2018, the Group came
across an opportunity to dispose of the pharmaceutical retail chain
business at a consideration of HK$49 million. After the disposal
is completed in November 2018, the sale proceeds was used to
repay part of the Group’s loan. Consequently, the financial cost of

that loan was reduced by 40% thereafter.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue from continuing operations

Looking back at 2018/19, the Group’s revenue from that
operating segment experienced a decrease. For the year ended
31 March 2019, revenue was approximately HK$96.480 million
(2018: approximately HK$353.014 million), accounting for a
decrease of approximately 72.67% over last year. The gross profit
margin was approximately 16.62%, while it was approximately
11.10% in 2018.

Other revenue

Other revenue, primarily including sundry income, bank interest
income and government grants amounted to approximately
HK$0.607 million (2018: approximately HK$0.600 million) for the
year ended 31 March 2019.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Selling and distribution expenses

For the year ended 31 March 2019, selling and distribution
expenses amounted to approximately HK$3.669 million (2018:
approximately HK$13.094 million), representing a decrease of
approximately 71.98% over the last year. The decrease in the
selling and distribution expenses was due to the decrease in

revenue of the Group.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses for the year ended 31 March 2019
amounted to approximately HK$25.041 million (2018:
approximately HK$25.952 million), representing a slight decrease
of approximately 3.51% over last year, which was similar to last

year's level.

Finance costs

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the finance costs of the Group
were approximately HK$12.839 million (2018: approximately
HK$14.696 million), representing a decrease of approximately

12.64% over the last year.

Loss for the year attributable to owners of the
Company

The Group had loss for the year attributable to owners of the
Company of approximately HK$66.592 million for the year ended
31 March 2019 (2018: HK$55.586 million).

The increase in loss for the year attributable to owners of the
Company was mainly due to: 1) the Group’s Hemodialysis Business
is still at its initial stage of operation; and 2) an impairment
loss of goodwill of approximately HK$35.459 million which was
attributable to fierce competition from other hospitals in the

hemodialysis business.

12 WANIJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019

HERSHER
HE-Z-NAF=ZA=1+—HALFE HER
DHEEANSE3669,0008T (ZFE—NE 4
13,094,000 7T) B EF R 2 #71.98% ° 4
ERDHERRD DHRAEE 2 R A
o

THRX
BHE-ZE-NE=A=1t—-BLEFEZTH
B X #525,041,0008 T (ZE—NE: 4
25,952,000/ T )  BRAF MR #93.51%
B EFEARFEHEY

MERE
BE-_Z- AW EF=Z=A=+—-HLEEE K
SEEHHERYNB12,839,0008 T (==
— N\E:4914,696,0008 T) ' BEFRPH
12.64% ©

FAFHAABEFEFEEGR

BE-_E-hWE=A=+t—BLEFE K&EEH
BB ARNREE AELFEEEX66,592,000
Bt (ZZ— )\ :55,586,000/87T) °

RABREEAEBLEFEHBENDEEHAR:

DAREBNIRBENELMEREDSR K2)
HiBRAEMRBENELHR R AT REE
Z BB E518#935,459,00058 JT ©



LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Overall financial position

The Group had total cash and cash equivalents of approximately
HK$28.816 million as at 31 March 2019 (2018: approximately
HK$91.922 million). The Group recorded total current assets of
approximately HK$98.509 million as at 31 March 2019 (2018:
approximately HK$272.894 million) and total current liabilities
of approximately HK$91.494 million as at 31 March 2019 (2018:
approximately HK$242.392 million). The current ratio of the
Group, calculated by dividing the current assets by the current
liabilities, was approximately 1.077 as at 31 March 2019 (2018:
approximately 1.126).

Gearing ratio

As at 31 March 2019, the Group’s gearing ratio which was
calculated based on outstanding debts (comprising other
borrowing) less cash and cash equivalents over total equity
(including all capital and reserves attributable to owners of the

Company) was approximately 36.71% (2018: 5.07%).

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2019 and 2018, no member of the Group was
engaged in any litigation or arbitration of material importance and
no litigation or claim of material importance was known to the
Directors to be pending or threatened against any member of the

Group.

Capital commitments
As at 31 March 2019, there were respective capital commitments
for construction contracted for but not provided in the
consolidated financial statements amounting to HK$5.732 million
(2018: HK$1.836 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE

On 3 October 2018, the Company and the placing agent (“Placing
Agent”) entered into the placing agreement pursuant to which
the Company has conditionally agreed to place through the
Placing Agent to 129,681,000 placing shares and whose ultimate
beneficial owners shall be independent third parties at a price of
HK$0.105 per placing share. The gross proceeds from the placing
was approximately HK$13.617 million and the net proceeds was
approximately HK$13.127 million. The placing was completed on
11 October 2018.

As at 31 March 2019, the total issued share capital of the
Company was approximately HK$7.781 million (2018: HK$6.484
million) representing 778,086,300 ordinary shares (2018:
648,405,300 ordinary shares).

The Company had no issued convertible notes as at 31 March
2019 (2018: Nil).

Details of the movement in the Company’s share capital during
the year were set out in Note 33 to the consolidated financial

statements.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s financial condition, results of operations, businesses
and prospects may be affected by a number of risks and
uncertainties. The following is the key risk and uncertainty
identified by the Group. There may be other risks and
uncertainties in addition to those shown below which are not
known to the Group or which may not be material now but could
turn out to be material in the future.
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Market Risks

PRC government policy

In August 2014, Fujian Food and Drug Administration (18
EEREREBEER) announced a New GSP that only 10
qualified companies are permitted to conduct the business in the
distribution to public hospitals and public healthcare institutions
after 2016, and one of the non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the
Group, namely Fujian Province Fuzhou City Huihao Pharmaceutical
Company Limited* is on the list, however, the new pharmaceutical
distribution policy for public healthcare institutions in Fujian
Province broke the original rules that essential medicines in public
hospitals in Fujian Province were only distributed by 10 wholesale

companies.

One of major challenges for the Group is meeting regulatory
requirements and responding to changes in the external macro-
environment. If the Group cannot effectively monitor and
respond to changes in the external environment, timely and
effective response to regulation will affect the Group's business

development.

The Group is very concerned about external regulatory compliance
and environmental changes, and a management team is
responsible for timely collection, interpretation and promotion
of external regulatory requirements. The Group’s management,
together with the business line, will also discuss changes in
the external environment, assess the impact of regulatory
requirements on the existing business, and develop targeted
countermeasures. The Group’s compliance team will provide
legal advice on the latest regulatory requirements and conduct

compliance reviews on the compliance of existing regulations.

. English translations of official Chinese name are for identification
purpose only

Management Discussion and Analysis

B P Wt M o B

h 45 R BR

oh B B T i 3R

—E-NMENR ERERMEMREEEER
BMGHEEEERE EETREERKLAE
BERZZE-AFERBOXLUERRATER
BEETOHER MAKETEFZENE
RE (EEZERMNTEFEXARLF) A
BIEHP AR HNEEZEALBERBE
MEZBR R TRENEREAVERE
REY BT I B EERENRR -

EUEEBRREHINDLZEREZ(CLELE
BEEN-REARE  EAEETEENR
EAREBHIIBREE L REBUEHEE
HEEREENELERE-

i

REBEFREFEINBEESRMNREZL
EEBRAEERKRE BENSEIBEEER
Ko A EEE B E R EBRRT AT SN
RES( FAEEERVBAEBEBNRE
THEHHEEEER AEESRERSY
RMEEEREMEEZERHEE UHREX
RNETERARSRMTE

* EXPXERZ R ZEEERBHF

EREEERERAR 15
2018/2019 F R



Management Discussion and Analysis

B P Wt M or

Operational risks

With the strong pharmaceutical distribution market layout in
Fujian Province by a number of pharmaceutical groups with
enormous manufacturers’ resources, the competition of the
pharmaceutical wholesale and distribution business as well as its
talents was intensified; also, the medical reform policy further
controlled the pharmaceutical costs in public hospitals in Fujian
Province and had reduced the overall size of the pharmaceutical
distribution business in public hospitals, and thus causing material
adverse impact on the operation and its overall performance
of the Group in the pharmaceutical wholesale and distribution
business. To use its management resources effectively, the Group
works with other alliance partners in operates jointly-operated
hemodialysis treatment centers under co-operations contracts.
However, in the future if contracts are changed or alliances
dissolved, if the management environment of alliance partners
worsens, or if the management policies of alliance partners
changes substantially, there could be an adverse influence on the

Group's financial position or results.

The Group has always been concerned about industry competition
and actively enhanced its competitive advantage in talent,
technology and capital management, to constantly meet
the expectations from customers. The Group has combined
the advantages of its business model and used its business
characteristics to gradually facilitate the sustainable and healthy

development of the two business segments.
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Foreign Exchange Risk

Since almost all transactions of the Group are denominated in
Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars, most of the bank deposits
are being kept in Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars to minimise
exposure to foreign exchange risk, the Directors consider that the

Group's risk exposure to currency fluctuations to be minimal.

Therefore, the Group had not implemented any formal hedging
or other alternative policies to deal with such exposure during the

year.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY
As at 31 March 2019, the Group had 102 (2018: 953 in which
the number of staff for continuing operations was 96) full time

employees (including Directors) as shown in the following table:
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For the year ended 31 March 2019, staff costs for continuing
operations (including directors emoluments) amounted to
approximately HK$15.920 million (2018: approximately
HK$17.797 million). The Group remunerates its employees
based on individual performance and qualification. Apart from
the basic remuneration, staff benefits include the contribution
to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme, discretionary bonus
and medical coverage in Hong Kong; and basic insurance for
the elderly, basic medical insurance, work injury insurance and

unemployment insurance to the employees in the PRC.
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CHARGES ON GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 31 March 2019, the Group charged to the lender of other
borrowing by way of first floating charge all its undertaking,
property, assets, goodwill, rights and revenues, whatsoever
and whosesoever, both present and future, including all book
and other debts now and from time to time due or owing to
the Company, the uncalled capital, goodwill and all intellectual
properties and intellectual property rights, patents, patent
applications, trademarks, service marks, trade names, registered
designs, copyrights, licenses and ancillary and connected rights
both present and future of the Company so that the charge
hereby created shall be a continuing security by way of first

floating.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
During the year, details of the Group’s material acquisitions and
disposals of subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures are set out

below.

Acquisition of subsidiaries

(a) Wuhua
On 10 October 2018, an indirect non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, Zhuhai Sheng Chuang Medical
Investment Management Limited*, entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with the vendor and agreed
to acquire the entire equity interest in Wuhua Yongke
Kidney Hemodialysis Company Limited” (“Wuhua”), with a
consideration of RMB3 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$3.395 million). The principal activity of Wuhua is
provision of hemodialysis treatment service through self-
operated hemodialysis treatment centers in the PRC. The

acquisition was completed on 17 October 2018.

. English translations of official Chinese names are for identification
purpose only
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(b)

I
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Wuchuan

On 25 March 2019, an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, Zhuhai Sheng Chuang Medical Investment
Management Limited*, entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with the vendor and agreed to acquire the entire
equity interest in Wuchuan Zhining Hemodialysis Company
Limited* (“Wuchuan”), with a consideration of RMB3
million (equivalent to approximately HK$3.507 million). The
principal activity of Wuchuan is provision of hemodialysis
treatment service through self-operated hemodialysis
treatment centers in the PRC. The acquisition was completed
on 25 March 2019.

Disposal of a subsidiary

On 23 August 2018, an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the

Company, Hui Hao (HK) Group Limited, entered into a sale and

purchase agreement with a buyer and agreed to sell the entire

99.8% equity interests in Fujian Huihao Sihai Pharmaceutical

Chain Company Limited*, an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary

of the Company, with a consideration of HK$49 million. The

disposal was completed on 15 November 2018.

#

English translations of official Chinese names are for identification
purpose only
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Wanjia Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) acknowledges
the need and importance of corporate governance as one of the
key elements in creating shareholders’ value. The Company is also
committed to achieving high standard of corporate governance
that can properly protect and promote the interests of all
shareholders and to enhance corporate value, accountability and

transparency of the Company.

The Company strived to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance and complied with the Corporate Governance Code
(the "CG Code") as stated in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing Securities on Main Board (the “Listing Rules”) of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
During the year under review, the Company had revised the Terms
of Reference for its Audit Committee in order to fully comply
with the amendments to the Listing Rules in relation to corporate

governance that took effect since 1 January 2019.

The Company has adopted the code provisions in the CG Code
as its own code of corporate governance. Save as the deviation
from the code provision A.2.1, separation of roles of Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer pursuant to code provision A.2.1 as
disclosed in the section “Chairman and Chief Executive Officer”.
The board of directors (the “Board”) considers that the Company
was in compliance with all applicable code provisions set out in
the CG Code from 11 October 2013, being the date of listing of

the Company, to the date of this announcement.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) since 11 October 2013, being
the date of listing of the Company, up to the date of this report.

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its model code for

securities transactions by Directors.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The overall management of the Company’s operation is

vested in the Board.

The Board takes responsibility to oversee all major matters
of the Company, including the formulation and approval of
all policy matters, overall strategies, internal control and risk
management systems, and monitoring of the performance
of the senior management. The directors of the Company
("Directors”) make decisions objectively in the interests of
the Company. Currently, the Board comprises five Directors,
including two executive directors and three independent

non-executive directors:

Executive Directors
Mr. Chen Jinshan
Mr. Wang Jia Jun
(Appointed on 31 August 2018)
Ms. Yung Ka Lai
(Resigned on 31 August 2018)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Wong Hon Kit

Dr. Liu Yongping

Mr. Ho Man

Their biographical details and relationships among the
board members, if any, are set out in the section entitled
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”

in the annual report.

The Board delegates the authority and responsibility for
implementing day-to-day operations, business strategies
and management of the Group's businesses to the
executive Directors, senior management and certain specific

responsibilities to the Board committees.
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Training and Support for Directors
The Company encourages the Directors to participate in
professional development courses and seminars to develop

and refresh their knowledge and skills.

Pursuant to A.6.5 of the CG Code, directors should
participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains

informed and relevant.

Effective from 11 October 2013, the date of listing of the
Company, up to the date of this report, regulatory updates
and relevant materials on amendments of the Listing
Rules have been sent to the Directors for their awareness
of the latest development on regulatory requirements, to
ensure that they are fully aware of the responsibilities and
obligations of directors under the Listing Rules and relevant

regulatory requirements.

Directors’ and Officers’ Insurance

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance
for the Directors to cover their liabilities arising out of
corporate activities. The coverage and the sum insured under

the policy are to be reviewed regularly.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. After the former
Chairman resigned from the Company in 2014, there is no
position of the chairman and chief executive officer up to

the date of the report.

The Company will, from time to time, review the
effectiveness of the Group's corporate governance
structure and consider whether any changes, including
the establishment of the roles of the chairman and chief

executive officer.
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Appointments, Re-election and Removal of
Directors

Each of the executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors has entered into a service contract or
letter of appointment with the Company for a specific term.
Such term is subject to his or her re-appointment by the
Company at an annual general meeting upon such Director’s

retirement and offering himself for re-election.

In accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company, one-third
of the Directors who have been longest in office since their
last election or re-election are also subject to retirement by
rotation at the annual general meeting. All retiring Directors

are eligible for re-election.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

In compliance with Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed three independent non-executive
Directors, Mr. Wong Hon Kit and Mr. Ho Man both possess
the appropriate professional qualifications in accounting
and financial management. The Company has received
from each of the independent non-executive Directors an
annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.
Each of the three independent non-executive Directors has
signed a letter of appointment with the Company for a

specific term of three years.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Pursuant to the requirements of Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules, the Company Secretary of the Company, Mr. Yu Tat
Chi Michael confirmed that he had taken no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training during the year ended
31 March 2019.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established a Nomination and Corporate
Governance Committee, an Audit Committee and
a Remuneration Committee (collectively “Board
Committees”) with defined terms of reference. The terms
of reference of the Board Committees are posted on the
website of the Company and of the Stock Exchange, and
are available to shareholders. Members of each of these
committees are independent non-executive Directors. The
list of the Chairman and of members of each committee is
set out in each of the following Board committee section.
The meeting procedures follow the statutory procedures for
Board meetings.

The committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and in appropriate circumstances, the
Company can retain external auditors, financial advisors and
lawyers and other relevant independent professionals to
provide independent professional advice to assist members

of the committees in fulfilling their responsibilities.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 24
September 2013 with written terms of reference in
compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rule and a copy
of which is posted on the website of the Company and
of the Stock Exchange. The Remuneration Committee has
adopted the approach under code provision B.1.2(c)(ii) of
the CG Code and made recommendations to the Board on
the Group's overall policy and structure for the remuneration
of Directors and senior management. The members of
Remuneration Committee for the year and up to the date of

this report are:

Mr. Wong Hon Kit (Chairman)
Dr. Liu Yongping
Mr. Ho Man
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The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include

(but without limitation):

(i)  making recommendations to the Board on the policy
and structure for all remuneration of the Directors and
the senior management and on the establishment of
a formal and transparent procedure for developing

policies on such remuneration;

(i) determining the remuneration packages of all
individual executive Directors and the senior
management and making recommendations to the
Board of the remuneration of non-executive Directors;

and

(iii)  reviewing and approving compensation payable to the
executive Directors and the senior management for any
loss or termination of office or appointment to ensure
that it is consistent with the relevant contractual terms

and is otherwise fair and not excessive.

The role and function of the Remuneration Committee
include the determination of specific remuneration package
of all executive Directors, including benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments, including
any compensation payable for loss or termination of their
office or appointment, and making recommendations to
the Board of the remuneration of non-executive Directors.
The Remuneration Committee considers factors such as
salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities of the directors, employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group and desirability of performance-

based remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet once during
the financial year. During the meeting, the Remuneration
Committee will review the remuneration packages of the
executive Directors, independent non-executive Directors and

senior management.

The Remuneration Committee held 4 meetings during the
year ended 31 March 2019.
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Nomination and Corporate Governance
Committee

The Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee
was established in 24 September 2013 with written terms
of reference in compliance with paragraph A.5.1 and D.3.1
of Appendix 14 to the Listing Rule and a copy of which is
posted on the website of the Company and of the Stock
Exchange. The members of Nomination and Corporate
Governance Committee for the year and up to the date of

this report are:

Mr. Wong Hon Kit
Dr. Liu Yongping
Mr. Ho Man

All of the members are independent non-executive Directors.
The primary duties of the nomination and corporate

governance committee include, but are not limited to:

(a) reviewing the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the
Board on a regular basis and making recommendations

to the Board regarding any proposed changes;

(b) identifying individuals suitably qualified to become
members of the Board and selecting or making
recommendations to the Board on the selection of,

individuals nominated for directorship;

() making recommendations to the Board on relevant
matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment
of Directors and succession planning for Directors in
particular the chairman of the Board and the chief

executive officer of the Company; and
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(d) keeping the effectiveness of the corporate governance

and system of internal controls of the Group.

The Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee shall
meet once during the financial year. During the meeting,
the Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee will
review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board and review
the arrangement for re-election of all the retiring Directors
at the forthcoming general meetings of the Company and
the terms of reference of the Nomination and Corporate

Governance Committee.

The Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee has
adopted a Board Diversity Policy (“Policy”). The Company
continuously seeks to enhance the effectiveness of its
Board and to maintain the highest standards of corporate
governance and recognises and embraces the benefits
of diversity in the Board. A diversity of perspectives can
be achieved through engaging directors in possession
of gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, required experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service, etc. The composition,
experience and balance of skills of the Board are regularly
reviewed to ensure that the Board retains a core of members
with longstanding knowledge of the Group alongside new
Director(s) appointed from time to time who bring fresh
perspectives and diverse experience to the Board. The Board
appointments will continue to be made on a merit basis
and candidates will be considered against objective criteria,
with due regard for the benefits of diversity in the Board.
The Board will continue to review the Policy to ensure its

continued effectiveness on an annual basis.

The Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee held

3 meetings during the year ended 31 March 2019.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 24 September
2013 with written terms of reference in compliance with
Rule 3.2.1 of the Listing Rules and a copy of which is posted
on the website of the Company and of the Stock Exchange.
In order to comply with the amended CG Code, the
Board adopted the revised terms of reference of the Audit
Committee on 31 December 2018. The members of Audit
Committee for the year and up to the date of this report are:

Mr. Wong Hon Kit (Chairman)
Dr. Liu Yongping
Mr. Ho Man

All of the committee members are independent non-
executive Directors. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee include, but are not limited to:

(a) reviewing and monitoring the external auditors’
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness
of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standard;

(b)  monitoring integrity of financial statements of the
Company and the Company’s annual report and

accounts and the interim report;

(c) reviewing the Company’s financial controls, risk
management and internal control systems;

(d) reporting to the Board on the matters set out in the
code provisions as stated in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules.

The Audit Committee shall hold at least 2 regular meetings
in a year to review and discuss the interim and annual
financial statements of the Company. Additional meetings of

the Audit Committee may be held as and when required.
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The Audit Committee shall meet with the external auditors
at least once a year. The external auditors may request a

meeting if they consider necessary.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Audit Committee
held 2 meetings.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with management
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group
and discussed internal control and financial reporting
matters for the year ended 31 March 2019. The Group's
audited consolidated financial results for the year ended 31
March 2019 were reviewed by the Audit Committee, which
was of the opinion that the preparation of such results
complied with the applicable accounting standards and

requirements and that adequate disclosures has been made.

The accounts for the year were audited by HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited whose term of office will expire
upon the forthcoming annual general meeting. The
Audit Committee has recommended to the Board that
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited be nominated for
appointment as the auditors of the Company at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

Corporate Governance Function
The Board is collectively responsible for performing corporate

governance duties including:

(a) to develop and review an issuer’s policies and practices

on corporate governance;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior

management;

(c) to review and monitor the issuer’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory

requirements;
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(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to

employees and Directors; and

(e) to review the issuer's compliance with the Code and

disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

Under the Company’s Code, the Board may delegate part
of the above duties to the Company’'s board committees.
During the financial year ended 31 March 2019, the Board
has, on its own and through the Nomination and Corporate
Governance Committee and Audit Committee, fulfilled the
above corporate governance duties. The Nomination and
Corporate Governance Committee assisted the Board to
review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and the senior management.
The Audit Committee assisted the Board to review the
Company’s compliance with the Code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report and the policy on compliance

with legal and regulatory requirements.

NUMBER OF MEETINGS AND DIRECTORS’
ATTENDANCE

CG Code provision A.1.1 prescribes that at least 4 regular
Board meetings should be held each year at approximately
quarterly intervals with active participation of a majority of
the Directors, either in person or through other electronic

means of communication.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Board has held
12 meetings. All executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors attended most of the meetings.

All members of the Board and the Company's external
auditors attended the 2018 annual general meeting (“2018
AGM").
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Attendance record of each Director at the 2018 AGM and
the meetings of the Board, together with the meetings of
the Audit, Remuneration and Nomination and Corporate
Governance Committee during the year ended 31 March

2019 are set out below.
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Attendance/Number of Meetings

HERE/ERAB
Nomination
and Corporate
Audit ~ Remuneration Governance
Board Committee Committee Committee 2018 AGM
®RER 2018
Name of directors RN Exg FUERE FHZERE LRERZAE BRAFXE
Executive directors HTES
Mr. Chen Jinshan REwxs 12112 NAFE R NARER NARE R 17
Ms. Yung Ka Lai SEBELL 22 NATER NATBR NATER NAFE R
Mr. Wang Jia Jun’ Wang Jia Jun% 4 912 NARE A NATBR NATER 7
Independent non-executive directors ~ BIAFHTES
Mr. Wong Hon Kit BEREE 12112 2 4/4 33 17
Dr. Liu Yongping ABTHL 12112 2 4/4 33 17
Mr. Ho Man gEE 1212 22 4/4 33 11
e 3 Board meetings were held before her resignation on 31 e ERR=F—NENA=1+—HBTH

August 2018

g The 2018 AGM was held after her resignation on 31 August
2018

* 9 Board meetings were held after his appointment on 31
August 2018
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The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
Year. The Directors have prepared the consolidated financial
statements of the Group on a going concern basis, and
have selected appropriate accounting policies and applied
them consistently, adopted appropriate Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and Hong Kong Accounting Standards,
with applicable disclosures required under the Listing Rules
and pursuant to the relevant statutory requirements. The
Directors are also responsible for keeping proper accounting
records which reflect the financial information of the Group

with reasonable accuracy.

In respect of code provision C.1.3 of the CG Code, Directors
are not aware of material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the

Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company’s external
auditors, HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited, are set out
in the section headed “Independent Auditors’ Report” on

pages 61 to 70 of this annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for
maintaining the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems to safeguard the assets of the
Group. Such systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate risks of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance

against material misstatement or loss.

The Audit Committee is delegated by the Board to assist the

Board in fulfilling the above responsibilities.
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During the year, the Board has reviewed the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group,
which covers all material financial, operational, compliance
controls and risk management functions, and considered the
risk management and informed the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and
budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
function. The Board concluded that the risk management

and internal control systems are adequate and effective.

Main Features of Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems

The key elements of the Group's risk management and
internal control systems include a well-defined management
structure with limits of authority, clear policies, standard
operation procedures, and risk control self-assessment
conducted for all major operating units of the Group. The
system is designed to provide reasonable assurance of no
material misstatement or loss and to manage risks failure
in operational systems and achievement of the Group's

objectives.

The Board has the overall responsibility to ensure that sound
and effective internal controls are maintained, but the
management is responsible for designing and implementing
internal control systems to manage all kinds of risks faced
by the Group. The operating units and support functions are
facilitated and coordinated by the management, and ensure
that risk management processes and mitigation plans follow
good practices and guidelines established in their day-to-day

operations.

The Group's risk management activities are performed by
management on an ongoing basis. The effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems is
evaluated at least annually to update the progress of risk

monitoring efforts.
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Process used to identify, evaluate and manage
significant risks

Management will assess the nature and impact of risk, and
report issues to the Board. The Group identifies outside
and inside events by reviewing its external and internal
environment and stakeholders, which have an influence
or potential influence on the Group’s ability to achieve its

strategy and business objectives.

The Board, according to the risk report, would take
appropriate action to eliminate the risks. Risks which cannot
be accepted or are beyond the Company’s risk appetite are
transferred, eliminated or controlled through risk mitigation
measures. Each risk mitigation measure has a process owner
who is a Department Manager and a target completion date
is assigned to ensure accountability. Risks owners are also
responsible for monitoring the status of the risk mitigation

measures for risks under their purview.

Process used to review the effectiveness of the

Risk Management and Internal Control Systems

The Board and Audit Committee review the internal control
issues identified by external auditors, regulatory authorities
and management, and evaluates the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems. To further enhance control awareness,
the Group has also approved launching a whistleblowing
policy or employees to raise any concerns about possible

improprieties in any matter related to the Group.

Inside Information Policy

The Company regulates the handling and dissemination
of inside information to ensure inside information remains
confidential until the disclosure of such information is
appropriately approved, and the dissemination of such
information is efficiently and consistently made. The
Company’s legal advisor also assists the Board to assess
whether the relevant information is considered to be
inside information which needs to be disclosed as soon as

reasonably practicable.
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Conflict of Interest

If a Director has a conflict of interest in relation to a
transaction or proposal to be considered by the Board, the
individual is required to declare such interest and to abstain
from voting. The matter is considered at a Board meeting
attended by Directors who have no material interest in the

transaction.

The Group also adopted certain internal control policies to

manage potential conflicts of interest.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited has been appointed
as the Company’s external auditors since the Company’s
incorporation. There was no disagreement between
the Board and the Audit Committee on the selection,
appointment, resignation or dismissal of the external

auditors.

The remuneration paid to the Company’s external auditors,
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited, in respect of audit
services and non-audit services for the year ended 31 March

2019 is set out below:
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AND INVESTORS

The Company believes that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations
and investors’ understanding of the Group's business
performance and strategies. The Group also recognises
the importance of transparency and timely disclosure of
corporate information, which enable shareholders and

investors to make appropriate investment decisions.

The members of the Board, Board Committees and the
external auditors are present to answer shareholders’
questions in the annual general meeting of the Company.
Meeting circulars are distributed to all shareholders before
the annual general meeting and special general meetings
in accordance with the timeline requirement as laid down
in the Listing Rules and the articles of the Company. All the
resolutions proposed to be approved at the general meetings
will be taken by poll and poll voting results will be published
on the website of the Stock Exchange and of the Company

after the meetings.

As a channel to promote effective communication, the
Group maintains a website where information on the
Company's announcements, financial information and
other information are posted. Shareholders and investors
may write directly to the Company at its principal place of

business in Hong Kong with any inquiries.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chen Jinshan (“Mr. Chen"”), aged 51, is an executive
Director. Mr. Chen holds a bachelor degree in finance and
accounting. Mr. Chen has over 17 years of accounting experience
and had also been a project manager for more than 8 years in
an accounting firm. Mr. Chen was the executive director of Good
Fellow Healthcare Holdings Limited (stock code: 8143, formerly
known as Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited), the shares of
which are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange, for the period
from 25 April 2006 to 10 October 2014.

Mr. Wang Jia Jun (“Mr. Wang”), aged 30, was appointed as
an executive Director since 31 August 2018. Mr Wang obtained
a bachelor’s degree in Business Management from Stony Brook
University in the United States of America in 2011. He also
obtained a master’'s degree in Health Administration from
Columbia University in the United State of America in 2017.
He has 4 years of experience in the areas of business analysis
and development across major cities in the People’s Republic of
China and was the Vice President (Projects Management) of the
Company since 1 August 2018 and was responsible for developing
and implementing business strategies of the Company in the
People’'s Republic of China. Mr. Wang is the spouse of Ms. Yung

Ka Lai, a former executive Director of the Company.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Hon Kit (“Mr. Wong”), aged 52, is an independent
non-executive Director. Mr. Wong obtained a Diploma in
Accounting from Hong Kong Shue Yan University in July 1991.
He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Wong is also the independent non-executive
director of Lerthai Group Limited (stock code: 112) since
December 2018, a company whose shares are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. In addition, he was the independent
non-executive director of Xinhua News Media Holdings Limited
(stock code: 309), from September 2017 to October 2017 and
Smart-Core Holdings Limited (stock code: 2166) from March
2016 to June 2018, both companies whose shares are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Wong is also an
independent non-executive director of Heng Xin China Holdings
Limited (stock code: 8046), a company whose shares are listed on
the GEM of the Stock Exchange, since June 2018 and the listing
of its shares would be cancelled with effect from 2 July 2019

pursuant to its announcement dated 26 June 2019.

Mr. Wong has over 16 years of experience in the corporate finance
industry. He has held various positions, including chief financial
officer, director and company secretary in different companies
in Hong Kong, where he has experience in handling corporate
finance transactions such as mergers and acquisitions, capital fund

raising and restructuring.
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Dr. Liu Yongping (“Dr. Liu”), aged 63, is an independent non-
executive Director. Dr. Liu is a practicing solicitor in Hong Kong
and a consultant of a firm of solicitors in Hong Kong. Dr. Liu
has more than 20 years of experience in the capital market and
merger and acquisition legal services sector. Dr. Liu graduated
from the University of London with a master’'s degree in law in
1987 and from the University of Oxford with a doctor’'s degree
in philosophy in 1994. Apart from his appointment with the
Company, Dr. Liu has been acting as an independent non-
executive director of Yue Da International Holdings Limited (stock
code: 629, formerly known as Yue Da Mining Holdings Limited)
since June 2010 and New Provenance Everlasting Holdings Limited
(stock code: 2326) since June 2018, both companies whose shares
are listed on the main board of Stock Exchange. Save as disclosed
above, Dr. Liu did not hold any directorship in any other public
companies the securities of which are listed on any securities
market in Hong Kong or overseas in the last three years.

Mr. Ho Man (“Mr. Ho"), aged 49, is an independent non-
executive Director. Mr. Ho has over 19 years of working experience
in private equity investment and finance and is currently the
managing director of an investment holding company. Prior to
that, Mr. Ho served as an executive partner representative of a
Chengdu-based private equity investment fund from December
2011 to May 2014. Mr. Ho worked for a Hong Kong-based private
fund management company during January 2010 to December
2013 and was the managing director and head of China growth
and expansion capital of CLSA Capital Partners from August
1997 to October 2009. Mr. Ho was the non-executive director
of SCUD Group Limited (stock code: 1399) from December 2006
to October 2009) and Shanghai Tonva Petrochemical Co., Ltd.
(stock code 1103, previous stock code: 8251, currently known as
Shanghai Dasheng Agriculture Finance Technology Co., Ltd) from
September 2008 to October 2009, both being companies listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He was the independent
director of Shenzhen Forms Syntron Information Co. Ltd (stock
code: 300468.5Z), a company listed on the ChiNext of Shenzhen
Stock Exchange, from February 2012 to February 2018.
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Mr. Ho has been an independent non-executive director of
Fantasia Holdings Group Co., Limited (stock code: 1777), since
October 2009; an independent non-executive director of Fu
Shou Yuan International Group Limited (stock code: 1448), since
December 2013; an independent non-executive director of CIMC-
TianDa Holdings Company Limited, (stock code: 445, formerly
known as China Fire Safety Enterprise Group Limited) since July
2015; an independent non-executive director of Momentum
Financial Holdings Limited (stock code: 1152, formerly known
as Infinity Financial Group (Holdings) Limited) since November
2016; and an independent non-executive director of Magnus
Concordia Group Ltd (stock code: 1172, formerly known as Midas
International Holdings Limited) since January 2018, all being

companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Ho has been a director of Shenzhen Daxiang Space
Construction Co., Ltd., (stock code: 836604), a company listed on
the National Equities Exchange and Quotations, since September
2015.

Mr. Ho was awarded an Executive Master of Business
Administration degree from Tsinghua University and a master’s
degree in finance from the London Business School. He is also a

Chartered Financial Analyst and a Certified Public Accountant.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Yu Tat Chi Michael ("Mr. Yu”), aged 54, has been appointed
as the Company Secretary with effect from 3 December 2018. Mr.
Yu holds a Bachelor of Commerce degree from the University of
New South Wales, Australia. He is a fellow member of the CPA
Australia and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Yu has many years of experience in
accounting, corporate finance and asset management. He had
held senior management positions in several listed companies in

Hong Kong.
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The board of directors (the “Board”) of Wanjia Group Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) has pleasure in presenting to the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) its report
together with the audited financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) for the year ended 31
March 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company while its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in pharmaceutical wholesale
and distribution business, pharmaceutical retail chain business and
provides hemodialysis treatment and consultancy service business
in the PRC. Details of the principal activities of its subsidiaries are

set out in Note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Further discussion and analysis of the business review as required
by Schedule 5 to Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622),
including future development in the Group’s business, can be
found in the “Management Discussion and Analysis” section of
this annual report. The above section form part of this “Report of

the Directors”.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

The Group’s commitment to protecting the environment is well
reflected by the continuous efforts in promoting green measures
and awareness in its daily business operations. The Group
encourages environmental protection and promotes awareness
towards environmental protection to the employees. The Group
also implements green office practices such as promoting the use
of recycled papers and reducing energy consumption by switching

off idle lighting and electrical appliances.

The Group reviews its environmental practices from time to time
and will consider implementing further eco-friendly measures
and practices in the operation of the Group's businesses and

enhancing environmental sustainability.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group's operation for the year by business
activities is set out in Notes 7 and 26 to the consolidated financial
statements and the paragraphs headed “Business Review"” under
the section of “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this

annual report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019 and
the state of the Group’s affairs as at 31 March 2019 are set out
in the consolidated financial statements on pages 71 to 79 of this

report.

In order to ensure the Board maintains an appropriate procedure
on declaring and recommending the dividend payment of the
Company, a new dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”) is
adopted by the Board on 8 November 2018 which aims to allow
the Shareholders to participate in the Company’s profits whilst
preserving the Company’s liquidity to capture future growth

opportunities.

DIVIDEND POLICY
The Dividend Policy of the Company establishes the principles to

ascertain amounts that can be distributed to its shareholders as
dividend by the Company. Subject to the applicable law and its
Articles, the Company’s dividend payout will be determined based
on available financial resources, investment requirements and

taking into account optimal shareholders return.
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While determining the nature and quantum of dividend payout,
the Board would take into account the following factors, inter

alia:

o Our financial results;

° our cashflow;

. our shareholders’ interests;

o general business conditions and strategies;
. our current and future operations;

o our liquidity and capital requirements;

. taxation considerations;

o statutory and regulatory restrictions; and

o any other factors the Board may deem relevant.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2019 (2018: Nil).

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities of the
Group for five financial years, as extracted from the audited
consolidated financial statements, is set out on page 236 of
this report. The summary does not form part of the audited

consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

The Group did not further invest in investment property during
the year. Details of the movements in investment property of the
Group during the year are set out in Note 20 to the consolidated

financial statements.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The Group acquired property, plant and equipment at cost of
approximately HK$30.476 million during the year. Details of the
movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during
the year are set out in Note 18 to the consolidated financial

statements.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The Group’s employees in the PRC participate in defined
contribution schemes provided by the relevant provincial and
municipal governments under which the Group and the employees
in the PRC are required to make monthly contributions to these
schemes in accordance with relevant requirements. The Group's
subsidiaries in the PRC contribute funds to the pension in
accordance with the requirements of the relevant provincial and

municipal governments.

The Group has arranged the Hong Kong employees to join the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme, a defined contribution scheme
managed by an independent trustee whereby each of the Group
(the employer) and the Hong Kong employees make monthly
contributions to the scheme in accordance with the relevant

legislation.

Details of the Group’s contributions to the retirement benefit
schemes are shown in Note 37 to the consolidated financial

statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements in the Company's share capital during
the year are set out in Note 33 to the consolidated financial

statements.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in Note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of changes

in equity on page 76 respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association, or the laws of Cayman Islands
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-

rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2019, there were no purchase,
sale or redemption of the Company's listed securities by the

Company or any of its subsidiaries.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group’s largest customer accounted for approximately
29.04% of the Group's revenue and the Group’s five largest
customers in aggregate accounted for approximately 63.29%.

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the aggregate amount
of purchases attributable to the Group's five largest suppliers
represented approximately 52.61% of the Group’s total value
of purchases. The Group's largest supplier accounted for
approximately 12.59% of the Group’s total value of purchases.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders, which
to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital, had any interests in the share
capital of the five largest customers and suppliers of the Group.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) during the year
and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Chen Jinshan
Mr. Wang Jia Jun
(appointed on 31 August 2018)
Ms. Yung Ka Lai
(resigned on 31 August 2018)

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Wong Hon Kit

Dr. Liu Yongping

Mr. Ho Man

In accordance with Article 84 of the Company's Articles of
Association, Mr. Wong Hon Kit and Dr. Liu Yongping, the
independent non-executive Directors of the Company, will
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

All other Directors will continue in office.

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management
are set on pages 37 to 40 of this annual report. Details of the
emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid individuals
are set out in Notes 13 and 14 to the consolidated financial
statements, respectively.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, a confirmation of independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the

independent non-executive Directors are independent.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Chen Jinshan, has been appointed as an executive Director
of the Company by way of a letter of appointment with the
Company for a term of 1 year commencing on 10 October 2014
which will continue thereafter until terminated by either party

giving to the other party at least one month’s notice in writing.

Mr. Wang Jia Jun has been appointed as an executive Director
of the Company by way of a service contract with the Company
for a term of 1 year commencing on 31 August 2018 which will
continue thereafter until terminated by either party giving to the

other party at least one month’s notice in writing.

Mr. Wong Hon Kit has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company by way of letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of 3 years commencing
from 11 April 2013 which will continue thereafter until either
the independent non-executive Director or the Company may
terminate the agreement by giving the other party not less than

three months’ notice in writing.

Dr. Liu Yongping has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company by way of letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of 3 years commencing
from 27 February 2014 which will continue thereafter until either
the independent non-executive Director or the Company may
terminate the agreement by giving the other party not less than

three months’ notice in writing.

Mr. Ho Man has been appointed as an independent non-executive
Director of the Company by way of letter of appointment with the
Company for a term of three years commencing on 14 February
2018 which will continue thereafter until either the independent
non-executive Director or the Company may terminate the
agreement by giving the other party not less than three months’

written notice in writing.
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has any service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed under the heading “Continuing connected
transactions”, no contracts of significance in relation to the
Group's business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director of the Company had a
material interests whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the

end of the year or at any time during the year.

INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS
A permitted indemnity provision that provides for indemnity
against liability incurred by Directors is currently in force and was

in force throughout the year ended 31 March 2019.

REMUNERATION POLICY
The remuneration policy of the employees of the Group is set
up by the Remuneration Committee and is based on merit,

qualifications and competence of employees.

The remuneration policy of the Directors are decided by the
Remuneration Committee having regard to the Group's operating

results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and those of the five highest
paid individuals of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019
are set out in Notes 13 and 14 to the consolidated financial

statements.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

Disclosure of Interests

(a)

Directors’ interests and short position in the securities
of the Company

As at 31 March 2019, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executive of the Company in
the shares of the Company (“Shares”), underlying Shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) which will have to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which are taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which will be
required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded
in the register referred to therein or which will be required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in
the Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the Listing Rules,
were as follows:
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Name of director Nature of interests of shares Position issued shares
HERT
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i) Ordinary Shares of the
Company
i) FATZHER
Mr. Wang Jia Jun Corporate interests; 11,201,475 Long 1.44%
(“Mr. Wang”) Interest of spouse (Note)
Wang Jia Junst & DA BEER "R
(f'wang% % 1) (FFEE)

Note: Ms. Yung Ka Lai (“Ms. Yung”) holds the Company’s Shares
through Power King Investment Development Limited. Mr.
Wang is the husband of Ms. Yung and is deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by Ms. Yung.
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King Investment Development Limited
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Approximate

percentage
Number of the total
Name of director Nature of interests of shares Position issued shares
HEBT
BRiniasz
EElR EaHH Bz 8 B afr ghaak
ii) Shares Options
i) i AR 2
Mr. Chen Jinshan Beneficial owner 6,400,000 Long 0.82%
PR& LSS BEEHEAA Ha
Mr. Wang Jia Jun Beneficial owner 6,400,000 Long 0.82%
Wang Jia Junst & BEBREA "R
Mr. Wong Hon Kit Beneficial owner 200,000 Long 0.03%
EEREE BEEHEAA Ha
Dr. Liu Yongping Beneficial owner 200,000 Long 0.03%
BT BEHEEBEA 3y
Mr. Ho Man Beneficial owner 200,000 Long 0.03%
A8EE BEEEEA e

The details of the Directors’ personal interest in the
underlying shares of the Company in respect of share
options granted by the Company are stated in the
following section “Share Options Granted to Directors and

Employees”.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, the Directors
of the Company were not aware of any other person (other
than the Directors and chief executive of the Company) who
had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.
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(b)
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Substantial shareholders’ interests and short positions (b) FERRNRIRGRIERMKRNDZEZR
in shares and underlying shares RE
As at 31 March 2019, other than the interests of a Director RZBE-hhE=ZA=+—-H KBLEX[E
or chief executive of the Company as disclosed under ERFETHAENEKATR LB E
the heading “Directors’ and chief executive’'s interests in BzRoO- HEROLNEEZZES ] —
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the company AR ERANTIEEFSFFTIETHRAE Z
and its associated corporations” above, the following EREMN UTAT (AR T2ESHITH
persons (not being a Director or the chief executive officer BEBRIN) RARAT RO BAAEIRGD P &
of the Company) have an interests or a short position in BERIERESNHEEFIEXVIE2RES
shares or underlying shares which would be required to be DEIENEOARNBRETIEE &
disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under AR DNBIRIEHZ SR BEEH FE3I361E
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, FEZETMZERS KR
or which were recorded in the register to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO:
Approximate
percentage
Number of the total
Name of shareholder Capacity Position of shares issued shares
HEBT
BRinfasz
BRERE e 51 g iz & H ghaakt
New Hope International Beneficial owner Long 54,914,804 7.06%
(Hong Kong) Limited (Note)
HHELZER (FB)BRAA BEDERAA L
(BtEE)
Southern Hope Enterprise Corporate interest Long 54,914,804 7.06%
Company Limited* (Note)
RMAZEEERRAT (M) ARER Ha
New Hope Group Company Corporate interest Long 54,914,804 7.06%
Limited* (Note)
FHEEEEHERAT (M) N A I
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Approximate

percentage
Number of the total
Name of shareholder Capacity Position of shares issued shares
HERTT
BinfE#z
BREERE & g% ' i H @HrEatt
Tibet Hengye Feng Industrial Corporate interest Long 54,914,804 7.06%
Company Limited* (Note)
BREXEEXEGR LT N A Ha
(B EE)
Mr. Liu Yonghao (Note) Corporate interest Long 54,914,804 7.06%
Bk (MEE) N A Ha
Ms. Liu Chang (Note) Corporate interest Long 54,914,804 7.06%
285+ (HEE) NEERE Ha
Ms. Li Wei (Note) Interest of spouse Long 54,914,804 7.06%
TRLL (M) [TRE: $ HE
Note: New Hope International (Hong Kong) Limited is B3 : FHREER(EB)ERAIAR

interested in 54,914,804 shares. The issued share
capital of New Hope International (Hong Kong) Limited
is owned as to 75% by Southern Hope Enterprise
Company Limited* which is in turn owned as to 51% by
New Hope Group Company Limited* and 49% by Tibet
Hengye Feng Industrial Company Limited*. Both New
Hope Group Company Limited* and Tibet Hengye Feng
Industrial Company Limited* are owned as to 62.34%
by Mr. Liu Yonghao, as to 36.35% by Ms. Liu Chang
and as to 1.31% by Ms. Li Wei. Mr. Liu Yonghao, Ms.
Liu Chang and Ms. Li Wei are deemed to be interested
in the shares in which New Hope International (Hong
Kong) Limited is interested in.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors nor their spouses or

children under 18 years of age were granted or had exercised any

rights to subscribe for any securities of the Company or any of its

associated corporations.

#

92

English translations of official Chinese names are for identification
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SHARE OPTIONS GRANTED TO DIRECTORS
AND EMPLOYEES

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in

Note 38 to the financial statements.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, details of share options

granted to the Directors and employees under the existing share

Report of the Directors
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option scheme of the Company were as follows:

Exercise Balance Granted Exercised Balance
Name or Category of price for  outstanding at during during  outstanding at
Participant Grant date Validity period one share 1 April 2018 the year the year 31 March 2019
B R®
ZE-0\EF —E-nf
AR B 7 mA—-A ZA=+-H
BEALHERER BHAH BRH ZfTfER ZBE RENREH RERTE k4
HK$
B
Director
B
Mr. Chen Jinshan 26 October 2018 26 October 2018 -
26 October 2028
Bk 2018108260 2018108268 %
2028%F 108268 0.135 - 6,400,000 - 6,400,000
Mr. Wang Jia Jun 26 October 2018 26 October 2018 -
26 October 2028
Wang Jia Junft £ 2018108268  2018%10A26HZ
2028108268 0.135 - 6,400,000 - 6,400,000
Mr. Wong Hon Kit 26 October 2018 26 October 2018 -
26 October 2028
BERRE 20185108268 20185108260 %
2028108268 0.135 - 200,000 - 200,000
Dr. Liu Yongping 26 October 2018 26 October 2018 -
26 October 2028
BVEL 20185108268  2018%108268%
2028%F 108268 0.135 - 200,000 - 200,000
Mr. Ho Man 26 October 2018 26 October 2018 -
26 October 2028
g%t 2018%10A260  2018F10826H 2
2028108268 0.135 - 200,000 - 200,000
Total
&t - 13,400,000 = 13,400,000
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Exercise Balance Granted Exercised Balance
Name or Category of price for  outstanding at during during outstanding at
Participant Grant date Validity period one share 1 April 2018 the year the year 31 March 2019
R R
2-0\§ —Z-nf
RERERSR mA—-H ZA=+-H
SHEATRERER RHBEH AU ZITER B REMEE RERTE k4§
HKS$
BT
Employees 26 October 2018 26 October 2018 -
26 October 2028
ER 2018F10A268  2018%10A26HZ
2028F 108268 0.135 = 51,440,000 - 51,440,000
Total
ast - 51,440,000 - 51,440,000
Grand total
it = 64,840,000 - 64,840,000
DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES EFWRKOzET

Save as disclosed under the headings”Directors’ and chief
executive's interests in shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the company and its associated corporations” and “Share
Options Granted to Directors and Employees” above and
particulars of the Share Option Scheme as set out in Note 38
to the consolidated financial statements, at no time during the
year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in or debentures
of the Company or any other body corporate and neither the
Directors nor the chief executive, nor any of their spouses or
children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the

securities of the Company.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 24 September 2013, the Company adopted a share option
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme"”) whereby the Board can
grant options for the subscription of our shares to the employees,
managerial staff and senior employees and those other persons
that the Board considers that they will contribute or have
contributed to the Group (the “Participants”) as described in
the Share Option Scheme in order to serve as compliment and
to reciprocate their contribution to the Group. The maximum
number of shares that can be issued according to the Share
Option Scheme was 64,840,530 shares, which is equivalent to
10% of the issued capital of the Company after completion of the
Listing on the Stock Exchange. The number of options that may
be granted pursuant to the terms of the Share Option Scheme
shall not exceed 10% of the issued shares immediately after
the completion of the Listing. Unless otherwise approved by the
shareholders of the Company in general meeting, the number of
shares that may be granted to a Participant under the options shall
not exceed 1% within any 12-month period (other than those
granted to the substantial shareholders (as defined in the Listing
Rules) of the Company or the independent non-executive Directors
or any of their respective associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules)), or the total number of shares that may be granted under
the options to the substantial shareholders of the Company or
the independent non-executive Directors or any of their respective
associates shall not exceed 0.1% of the shares in issue of the
Company from time to time. There is no minimum period that the
options must be held before they become exercisable, and the
options granted shall be exercised within the period decided by
the Board; however no options shall be exercised 10 years after
they have been granted. The exercise price of the option shall
be the higher of (a) the closing price of the shares on the daily
quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant; (b)
the average closing price of the shares on the daily quotation
sheet of the Stock Exchange for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (c) nominal value of the share.
Each grantee shall pay a consideration of HK$1.00 at the time the
option is granted. The Share Option Scheme shall take effect from
the date it is adopted and shall remain effective within a period of

10 years from that date.
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During the year, on 26 October 2018, the Company, in accordance
with the Share Option Scheme, granted an aggregate of
64,840,000 share options to the Participants, to subscribe, in
aggregate, for up to 64,840,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
in the share capital of the Company, representing approximately
10% of the shares of the Company in issue at that date. During
the year ended 31 March 2018, no share options have been
granted by the Company since the Share Option Scheme was

adopted.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of material related party transactions are set out in Note

39 to the consolidated financial statements.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group had entered into a number of transactions with
connected parties which, upon the listing of the Shares on the
Stock Exchange, became connected persons of the Company
under the Listing Rules. These transactions are continuing
connected transactions exempt from the independent
shareholder’'s approval requirements under the Listing Rules.

Details of the continuing connected transactions are as follows:
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Rental expenses paid to a related party

During the year, Fujian Province Fuzhou City Huihao
Pharmaceutical Company Limited* (the “Fujian Huihao”) and
Fujian Huihao Sihai Pharmaceutical Chain Company Limited*
(the “Huihao Sihai"),

subsidiary of the Company, paid rental expenses to Fujian Jiarui

both an indirect non-wholly owned

Pharmaceutical Chain Company Limited* (Formerly known as:
Fujian Huihao Pharmaceutical Chain Company Limited®) (“FJP
Chain”) for the rental of (i) Level 1 and Level 4 of the office
building located at No. 8 Huihao Road, Shangjie Town, Minhou
Xian, Fujian Province, the PRC (“Property 1) with a gross floor
area (“GFA") approximately 1,268 square meter (“sq.m.”); (ii)
Levels 1 to 3 of the warehouse building located at No. 8 Huihao
Road, Shangjie Town, Minhou Xian, Fujian, the PRC (“Property
2") with a GFA of approximately 9,852 sq.m.; (iii) Level 3 of the
office building located at No.8 Huihao Road, Shangjie Town,
Minhou Xian, Fujian Province, the PRC (“Property 3”) with a GFA
of approximately 600 sg.m.; and (iv) Level 4 of the warehouse
building located on No.8 Huihao Road, Shangjie Town, Minhou
Xian, Fujian Province, the PRC (“Property 4") with a GFA of
approximately 3,284 sg.m.(collectively “All Properties”).

The rental period was from 1 April 2018 to 15 May 2018 (the
“Rental Period”) with a total rental expenses of All Properties
amounted to RMB115,643. (equivalent to approximately
HK$135,000).

The rental expenses for All Properties was agreed and decided
upon by all parties on normal commercial terms after arm’s length
negotiations.

The tenancy agreement with which Fujian Huihao and Huihao
Sihai entered into respectively with FJP Chain on 4 December
2014 had been expired on 31 March 2018. During the year,
neither Fujian Huihao nor Huihao Sihai had entered into any new
tenancy agreement with FJP Chain.

On 16 May 2018, FJP Chain disposed of All Properties to an
independent third party who is not a connected person of the
Company.

. English translations of official Chinese names are for identification

purpose only
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FJP Chain was held as to 50% of its issued share capital by Mr.
Weng lJiale ("Mr. Weng"”) who is a cousin of Ms. Yung Ka Lai
(“Ms. Yung”). Ms. Yung is a former executive Director of the
Company and is the spouse of Mr. Wang Jia Jun (“Mr. Wang"”)
who is an executive Director of the Company. Moreover, Ms
Yung was an executive Director of the Company during the
Rental Period, therefore, Mr. Weng is a connected person of the
Company under Rule 14A.11(4) of the Listing Rules.

Tenancy agreements entered into with Mrs. Yung Muk
Ying (“Mrs. Yung”)

On 6 December 2017, Fujian Putian Huihao Medicine Company
Limited* (“Putian Huihao”), an indirect non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company entered into a tenancy agreement
("Tenancy Agreement 1”) with Mrs. Yung which for rental of
(i) Level 1 of which is located at No. 1466, 1470, 1476 Xiadian
Road, GongChen Street, Licheng District, Putian City, Fujian
Province, China (“Property 5”) with a GFA of approximately
169.81 sq.m.; and (ii) Level 2 of which is located at No. 1466,
1470, 1476 Xiadian Road, GongChen Street, Licheng District,
Putian City, Fujian Province, China (“Property 6") with a GFA
of approximately 192.86 sq.m.. The term of the lease is from 1
April 2018 to 31 December 2020 with a rental of RMB3,396.2 per
month for Property 5 and RMB1,928.6 per month for Property 6
and is renewable upon the signing of the new rental agreement.
The rental payment under Tenancy Agreement 1 was last paid
until 31 December 2018.

On 20 December 2018, Putian Huihao entered into a tenancy
agreement (“Tenancy Agreement 2”) with Mrs. Yung which for
rental of (i) Property 5 with extra area (“Property 7"), with a GFA
of approximately 189.3 sg.m.; and (ii) Property 6 with extra area
(“Property 8"), with a GFA of approximately 259.3 sq.m.. The
term of the lease is from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2021
with a total rental of RMB8,622 per month for both Property 7
and Property 8 and is renewable upon the signing of the new

rental agreement.

Mrs. Yung is the mother of Ms. Yung and the mother-in-law of Mr.

Wang.

. English translations of official Chinese names are for identification
purpose only
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During the year ended 31 March 2019, the annual cap, also the
total rental charge paid, for the Group’s total transaction amount
with Mrs. Yung contemplated under the Tenancy Agreement
1 and Tenancy Agreement 2 is RMB73,789 (equivalent to
approximately HK$85,000).

Save as disclosed above, there were no other transactions required
to be disclosed as non-exempt connected transactions or non-
exempt continuing connected transactions in accordance with the
Listing Rules during the year ended 31 March 2019. The Company
has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company, Mr.
Wong Hon Kit, Dr. Liu Yongping and Mr. Ho Man have, for the
purpose of Rule 14A.37 of the Listing Rules, reviewed the above
continuing connected transactions and confirmed that such
continuing connected transactions, for the reporting period, have
been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favorable to
the Group than terms available to or from (as appropriate)
independent third parties; and

(iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions and on terms that are fair and reasonable and in
the interest of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company as applied the code provisions set out in the
CG Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. Since
its listing on the Stock Exchange, the Company has complied
with the code provisions of the CG Code for the year ended 31
March 2019, save for the exceptions explained in the Corporate

Governance Report in this report.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS
During the Year, there was no material breach of or non-
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the

Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report and based on publicly available
information and the best knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has sufficient public float as required under Rule 8.08 of

the Listing Rules.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of significant events occurring after the reporting period

are set out in Note 44 to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2019 were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Limited who will retire at the forthcoming Annual General

Meeting and being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment.

On behalf of the Board

Chen Jinshan

Executive Director

Hong Kong, 27 June 2019
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Wanjia
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 71 to
235, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2019, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant

accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 March 2019, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit matters

MREHER

BERHER

EMERBEEBESHMASHMAN (FEBE
FPERD) (UTHEBIERBETERDETE
e RMEZSERNTERENEFICHELRS
[ EF G BERREAENEE] B
TEE-SER-RIEFBSHAM LS EMH
(EXETMEETR) (UTHEEI<FA])
EMBYRN BEEE YEBTTATRHEM
BREE-RMAEGE EMAMESHESER
ERAEREEMRBRMANETZREHER-

WEEER
ERESTSELRERMANIRNE RAY
MG EHBRR BT RABENEE
EEERARMBTRBEAMBRRRHA
BRBETREN - RATFEELEREMH
EBNER-

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

BMETEBNMEERREHER

Impairment assessment on goodwill

o 8 E AT

Refer to Note 21 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in Note 3 to the

consolidated financial statements.

LRGN BREMENUARGEMBHRRMEIZEABE-

The Group has goodwill of approximately
HK$95,208,000 relating to provision of hemodialysis
treatment and consultancy service business in the PRC
as at 31 March 2019. The management performed
impairment assessments of the cash generating units
and concluded that impairment loss for provision
of hemodialysis treatment and consultancy service
business of approximately HK$35,459,000 was
recognised.

R=ZZ-AF=ZA=+—-H  EBEEEEERTEHRH
MBENRE R FEARBEE 2EHELNH95,208,000/8
T EEEHREEAEMETREMERIABREAN
RIENT G B K w8 s BRTS 2E75 2 BB BT 18 4935,459,00078
TEEHER -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS - continued
Key audit matters
REFHER

Independent Auditors’ Report
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MEFHER-&
How our audit addressed the key audit matters
EMETEAFNMMEERRENSFTEH

Impairment assessment on goodwill — continued

AR EFE-E

The management performs an annual impairment test
on the recoverability of the goodwill which is subjective
in nature due to judgments having to be made of
future performance.
EEERBENTREMETFERENR  AREAY
ARKRBAFELHAE HEBETEME-

The valuation of goodwill performed by an
independent professional external valuer based on the
value in use calculation. The valuation requires the
application of significant judgement and estimation
by the management in determining the appropriate
valuation methodology to be used, use of subjective
assumptions and various unobservable inputs. The
valuation is sensitive to underlying assumptions applied
by the valuer such as pre-tax discount rates and growth
rate used and cash flow projection which can have a
significant impact to the valuation.

B EXEIIEEMETHREGEDEMNMERABES
BE-REEREEENREES TEACBEEGEL %
TERRRZIEATEEOARB2EAKERERX
I R Ak 5t o ik (B 5 P& {ELRT P FE AR R AR BA R BR (S P
ARAMRERIERERREREBA) BR mzE
BEHEEIEEEREE -

Our procedures in relation to the management’s
impairment assessment of goodwill included:

EMEEEH B ENRENGETHREFRE:

o Assessing the valuation methodology;

o FMEMERES

o Challenging the reasonableness of key
assumptions based on our knowledge of the
business and industry;

s MBEMUZEBNTENANR &
&M

5EBA SRR

o Checking on sample basis, the accuracy and

relevance of the input data used;

o HMEREMRANG ABBNEREMEREMNT

o Assessing the competence, expertise and
objectivity of the management expert who
calculates the recoverable amount of goodwill;
and

e AT EEETHREEENEEBRERMED -
EMREREENE R

o Engaging a valuation expert to evaluate the
assumptions and methodologies used in the

calculation.

s ZRE-FGESERFAETEAANRRRELE-

We found the key assumptions were supported by the

available evidence.

BMBRR 2E5ERBRCEAEREXRE-
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS - continued
Key audit matters

WREHEE

MEEER -

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

BENETEFARNMEERRFHER

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

5 % B W % TR R (L AT £

Refer to Note 5(b) and Note 23 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in Note 3 to

the consolidated financial statements.

LRMGEEMBRERMESDRME23UARAEMBHRERWEIZ ST HE -

As at 31 March 2019, the Group has gross trade
receivables of approximately HK$31,746,000 and
allowance for credit losses of trade receivables of
approximately HK$11,726,000. Provision is made for
lifetime expected credit losses on trade receivables.
R-ZB-AF=ZA=+—H BEXEENEZERNKE
MEAKR31,746,0008 T MEZRRARBZEEEE
BEAR11,726,0008 T - BB EZBUHIRENE
HEPEEBEES-

Management applied judgement in assessing
the expected credit losses. Receivables relating
to customers with known financial difficulties or
significant doubt on collection of receivables are
assessed individually for provision for impairment
allowance. Expected credit losses are also estimated by
grouping the remaining receivables based on shared
credit risk characteristics and collectively assessed
for likelihood of recovery, taking into account the
nature of the customer, its geographical location and
its ageing category, and applying expected credit
loss rates to the respective gross carrying amounts
of the receivables. The expected credit loss rates
are determined based on historical credit losses
experienced from the past 3 years and are adjusted to
reflect current and forward-looking information such
as macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the
customers to settle the receivables.
EEEEIAERCEESERERAE -FRACNTH
Mg BESREAREBRTIENEFBRRNRES
EBYFHHBERB KAREFME HiBNE
RERERER  FEBKNBREURENRAZEERIRE
BoM LEaTEERTEEEERBEESE X
EREREEFERNSBUHENREARE -FAHE
EFEBEEDREBEBE=FNELEEFEKREE I
RABRURMEARAEEER flNEEEFEEE
WHRIERINEBEBERE -
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Our procedures in relation to management’s assessment
on allowance for credit losses of trade receivables
included:
REEEHESFRURB2FEFERABIMAMS &M
ZEFERE:

o Understood and validated the credit control
procedures performed by management, including its
procedures on periodic review of aged receivables
and assessment on expected credit losses allowance
of receivables;

e ERIBIEEBEENTHNEEEERER SFHHUTE
HEMBHRKFRERFGERKFBEEREESER
BHNRER

o Tested on a sample basis, the accuracy of ageing
profile of trade receivables by checking to the
underlying sales invoices;

s ZBRENMBEHERR WHELXNAESEWER
AR 2 B

o Tested on a sample basis, the subsequent settlement
of trade receivables against bank receipts; and

o DB AFAERBITWBAHAEZBRURRNEER
BEHNESER R
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How our audit addressed the key audit matters

BMETEFARNMEERRFHER

We focused on this area due to the magnitude of the
trade receivables and the estimation and judgement
involved in determining the expected credit losses
allowance of the trade receivables.
BEMDERZEESRURENREREEZEES
FEW R IR 2 M E BB 18 83 P8 & 10 £k 51 5 3 B i
BRI EE -

Obtained management’s assessment on the
expected credit losses allowance of receivables.
We corroborated and validated management’s
assessment based on the historical settlement
pattern from the past 3 years, correspondence
with the customers, evidence from external sources
including the relevant public search results relating to
the financial circumstances of the relevant customers
and market research regarding the relevant forward-
looking information such as macroeconomic factors
used in management’s assessment.
DEEEEHRWKERBEEFSBEEGNTM &K
PENBE=FELER - EHEFNBERNRREB I
RENER (BREEBETFNHEKRNVEEQFHE
ZERUREEMELENNTSHE REALR
BHEEBNTE AUNEEBTIHINEBRLCERE
e

Based upon the above, we found that the estimation

and judgement made by management in respect of the

expected credit losses allowance and the collectability of

receivables were supported by the available evidence.
EREi&E RMEREEERERREBEEREERHE
BERAWEMEMENGTRABREIENRE -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements

and our auditors’ report thereon (the “Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the Other Information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the Other Information
and, in doing so, consider whether the Other Information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this Other
Information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing

to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
- continued

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's

financial reporting process.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other

person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on

the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

Independent Auditors’ Report
T 7 A% R i

EERERZREMGOMBGHSE
ARENRE—&

ERESSHBRRE ES8HTMH EF
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS - continued

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s

internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS - continued

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a

going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events

in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain

solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Independent Auditors’ Report
T 7 A% R i
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS - continued

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public

interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this

independent auditors’ report is Ng Ka Wah.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Ng Ka Wah
Practising Certificate Number: P06417
Hong Kong, 27 June 2019
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-3 Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

Aok B 18 2R B L Ath 2 1 Wi B 5%

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE=—F—NE=A=+—HILFE

e

2019 2018
—EB-hEF —E-N\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated)
Mt 5 FHET THET
(&=E5)
Continuing operations FEEERY
Revenue g & 8 96,480 353,014
Cost of sales HERA (80,448) (313,825)
Gross profit E£# 16,032 39,189
Other revenue H{th Uz 25 9 607 600
Other gain and loss, net Hith s R E518 - 558 10 (646) 196
Net reversal of impartment loss of B 5 Rk HMEWRK
trade and other receivables 1B 2R EEIERE FE 5(b) 4,788 =
Impairment loss on goodwill BEZREREE 21 (35,459) (336)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHER (3,669) (13,094)
Administrative expenses THAX (25,041) (25,952)
(Loss)/profit from operations BEXYE (BR) &7 11 (43,388) 603
Finance costs MBER 12 (12,839) (14,696)
Loss before taxation FRRAEGR (56,227) (14,093)
Taxation g 15 (1,946) (4,856)
Loss for the year from TEERBEEEEBZER
continuing operations (58,173) (18,949)
Loss for the period/year from B, SRERILEEEXREER
discontinued operation 26 (7,570) (36,478)
Loss for the year EEEEBGE (65,743) (55,427)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income FEEHRM2ME (E5iE)
for the year &=
Items that may be reclassified REZ I EE 7 HEE
subsequently to profit or loss: BmzHEHE :
Exchange differences on translating of REEIMNEEEK 2
foreign operations E 5 ZE4E (19,332) 32,059
Reclassification adjustment from A E — BB A B
translation reserve upon disposal a HEARZEEHN o ERAR
subsidiary 2,702 -
Other comprehensive (loss)/income FEEHM2ME (EHIR)
for the year I} &= (16,630) 32,059
Total comprehensive loss AFEEREGIREE
for the year (82,373) (23,368)

EREEZERERAR il
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

A 18 2 B L Ath 2 T Wi B 3R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE=—E—hE=A=+—HILEE

2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated)
i 5 FTHT FH&xT
€<= 7D
Loss for the year attributable to: BiEFEESR:
Owners of the Company RATEE A
— from continuing operations - REFEREXER (59,046) (19,181)
— from discontinued operation —“RECDKRLEKEZETE (7,546) (36,405)
(66,592) (55,586)
Non-controlling interests FERESR
— from continuing operations —-REFELSEED 873 232
— from discontinued operation —-REBRIEREEK (24) (73)
849 159
(65,743) (55,427)
Total comprehensive loss EBEXxEE2XEEREHE:
for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company KRABEE A
— from continuing operations —REFELSEER (68,207) (1,551)
— from discontinued operation —-REEBRILREEK (11,696) (27,285)
(79,903) (28,836)
Non-controlling interests R ER
— from continuing operations - REFEREER (2,437) 5,522
— from discontinued operation - REBRILEEER (33) (54)
(2,470) 5,468
(82,373) (23,368)

7 WANIJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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-3 Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

Aok B 18 2R B L Ath 2 1 Wi B 5%

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE=—F—NE=A=+—HILFE

B

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
(Restated)
B =E THET FTET
(RRE7)
Loss per share attributable to EAFIHAEAEBGESRER:
owners of the Company:
From continuing operations RAKGEREXBR
and discontinued operation ERIEBEBER
— Basic (HK cents per share) —EHAKR (FREA) 17 (9.39) (8.57)
— Diluted (HK cents per share) — 8 (ZREW) 17 (9.39) (8.57)
From continuing operations RAKEREXS
— Basic (HK cents per share) —EHAKR (ZREAM) 17 (8.33) (2.96)
— Diluted (HK cents per share) — 58 (BRBW) 17 (8.33) (2.96)
From discontinued operation REERILEEEZER
— Basic (HK cents per share) —EA&R (BRBW) 17 (1.06) (5.61)
— Diluted (HK cents per share) — 858 (FREA) 17 (1.06) (5.61)
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these BEMMEAZE R BHRR 22D

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
A M B ROLR

As at 31 March 2019 R=ZE—hE=H=+—H

2019 2018
—NE —E-N\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Ff=E FE&xT THExT
Non-current assets ERENEE
Property, plant and equipment ME- -BERZE 18 32,872 26,544
Prepaid lease payments FE{HEEMRE 19 - 10,958
Investment property REYE 20 - 9,789
Goodwill BHE 21 95,208 136,623
128,080 183,914
Current assets mEEE
Inventories 7E 22 10,920 62,136
Prepaid lease payments FE{NHEEMRE 19 - 383
Trade and other receivables ESNRHEMERREREZS
and deposits 23 58,773 118,453
Cash and cash equivalents RekHESZEEEE 27 28,816 91,922
98,509 272,894
Current liabilities g B =K
Trade and other payables B REMEMNKE 28 28,236 137,268
Amount due to a director Ef—REERIE 29 - 2,000
Amount due to a shareholder B —BRRARIE 29 2,000 =
Other borrowing Hitfg & 30 60,000 100,000
Tax payables eS8 1,258 3,124
91,494 242,392
Net current assets mEEERE 7,015 30,502
Total assets less current liabilities SEHERTDHAR 135,095 214,416
Net assets BERE 135,095 214,416
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ny o Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
A B R UL

As at 31 March 2019 R=ZF—h&E=B=+—H

)=

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
M 5 T#ET FTERT
Capital and reserves BER R

Share capital % 2% 33 7,781 6,484
Reserves (ERE] 77,167 152,791

Equity attributable to owners of ANAEE ARG ER
the Company 84,948 159,275
Non-controlling interests FEERES 50,147 55,141
Total equity N 135,095 214,416

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issued by the Board of Directors on 27 June 2019
and signed on its behalf by:

Chen Jinshan Wang Jia Jun

Executive Director Executive Director
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

REMBRENR-ZB-NEFAA=-TLHE

==

5 A1
BITEE

ESEHERRENR YA THESARE

Wang Jia Jun

BITEE

B ERZEFE M BRI 2 —BD -
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE=—E—hE=A=+—HILEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

EATRAABE
Non-
Share Share Other Share option  Contribution  Translation Statutory ~ Convertible ~ Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve  note reserve losses Sub-total interest Total
TR
K& RAEM KRR BRERE  BREE 0 EREN 0 ERER 0 REGE  RHEH M kRRES @it
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEn Fn FEn Fén TEn TiEn TiEn Tin Tn TEn TEn
(Note 33) (Note (a)) (Note (b)) (Note (c)) (Note (d)) (Note (g)) (Note (f))
(H333) (Kie)  (HE6) (MR  (WE@)  (K2E) (K&
At 1 April 2017 RZE-tEMA-A 6,484 (7,653) (28,145) = 866,811 (14,748) 32,207 7,695 (674,540) 188,111 49,673 237,784
Loss for the year KEEER - - - - - - - - (55,586) (55,586) 159 (55,427)
Other comprehensive income for the year REEEM2ANE - - - - - 26,750 - - - 26,750 5,309 32,059
Total comprehensive income/(loss) REERENE/ (F8) 48
for the year - - - - - 26,750 © @ (55,586) (28,836) 5,468 (23,368)
Transfer to statutory reserve BRIITRE B - - - - - 1,465 - (1,465) = = =
Redemption of convertiole notes RABREOTAREE
upon maturity - - - - - - - (7,695) 7,695 - = =
At 31 March 2018 RZE-\F=f=t-A 6,484 (7,653) (28,145) - 866,811 12,002 33672 = (723,89) 159,275 55,141 214416
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 9 R s A - - - - - - - - (11,495) (11,495) (3.216) (14,711)
A1 Aprl 2018 (restated) W=2-NEMA-A (£8) 6,484 7653 (28145 - a8t 12002 B67 - B3 147,780 5195 199,705
Loss for the year KEEEE - - - - - - - - (66,592) (66,592) 849 (65,743)
Other comprehensive loss for the year, rEEEM2EEE HRASH
et of income tax - - - - = (16,013) - - = (16,013) (3319 (19332)
Reclassification adjustment form translation R E-EHBATH
reserve upon disposal of a subsidiary BERRREENIEER B B - - - 2,702 = B B 2,702 = 2702
Total comprehensive loss for the year rEERAFEAE - - - - - (13,311) - - 66,592) (79.903) (2470 (82,373)
Issue of ordinary shares RTERR 1297 12320 - - - - - - - 13617 - 13617
Transaction costs attributable to placing of ~ REEBRELRZAA
ordinary shares - (490) - - - - - - - (490) - (490)
Equity-settled share-based payments HREEE 2 RHBRAR - - - 3,944 - - - - - 3,944 - 3,944
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 26) HE-BWELF (Hi0) - - (550) - - - (7,609) - 8,159 - 692 692
Transfer to statutory reserve BRELEHE - - - - - - 366 - (366) - - -
As at 31 March 2019 RZZ-1§ZA=1-A 7,181 4177 (28,695) 3,944 866,811 (1,309) 26,429 - (794,190) 84,948 50,147 135,095
Notes: Fit &
(a) Other reserve (a) H fth G i
The other reserve represented the difference between the HigfEE IR AR B T B i B A R M A B A
Company'’s shares of nominal value of the paid-up capital of Z R EEEAR D TR E AW S L EES
subsidiaries acquired over the Company's cost of acquisition of the M AT Z AR ZE5E -
subsidiaries under common control upon the reorganisation.
(b) Share option reserves (b) P B 42 K 0

The reserve represents the fair value of the actual or estimated

number of unexercised share options grants to eligible persons,

including any full-time and part-time employee, director,

consultant or advisor of the Company and its subsidiaries

recognised in accordance with the share option scheme.
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Notes: — continued

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Contribution reserve

Capitalisation of the outstanding amount of approximately
HK$866,811,000 due from Timely Hero Enterprises Limited
(“Timely Hero”) to Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited (“Hua
Xia") on 3 September 2013 in consideration of (i) the allotment
and issue 1 share of US$1 in the share capital of Timely Hero to
Luxuriant Expand Global Investment Limited (“Luxuriant Expand”),
credited as fully paid up, at the direction of Hua Xia; and (ii) the
allotment and issue of a total of 100 shares of US$1 each in the
share capital of Luxuriant Expand, all credited as fully paid up, to
Hua Xia in consideration of its receipt of 1 share in Timely Hero
at the direction of Hua Xia. Details of the reorganisation were set
out in the paragraph headed “The Reorganisation” in the section
headed “Corporate history, development and Reorganisation” in
the prospectus dated 30 September 2013.

Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in Note 3.

Statutory reserve

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations of the Peoples’
Republic of China (the “PRC"”), the subsidiaries of the Company
establishing in the PRC shall set aside 10% of its net profit after
taxation for the statutory surplus reserve fund (except where the
reserve balances has reached 50% of the subsidiaries’ paid up
capital). The reserve fund can only be used, upon approval by
the Board of Directors and by the relevant authority, to offset
accumulated losses or increase capital.

Convertible note reserve

The convertible note reserve represents the equity components
of the convertible notes issued. Convertible notes issued are split
into their liability and equity components at initial recognition at
the fair values of the convertible notes, which is determined by
independent qualified professional valuers.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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KMBRBIRERR AR ([RH]) B3 K 34T
R IRA R REE 1 X T ARIER R R
7 R>(NEEERBERBETRMRAFEH
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2019 2018
—E—-h¥E —E-N\F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
i 5 FHET T
Operating activities BEXY
Loss before taxation MRV RIE B
— From continuing operations - REFELEER (56,227) (14,093)
— From discontinued operation —RECRIEEEEE (7,570) (36,478)
(63,797) (50,571)
Adjustments for: HAERA:
Interest income FE U A 9 (142) (277)
Interest expenses FE B X 12 12,839 14,699
Amortisation of prepaid lease FENEERIE S
payments 19 380 383
Depreciation of property, ME BRERZEITE
plant and equipment 18 6,811 9,001
Provision for impairment loss on B S RYIBRESERE
trade receivables 23 - 1,113
Reversal of impairment loss of Z 5 EWFIBREEERE
trade receivables 5(b) (5,994) (349)
Provision for impairment loss on H{th FE WK IBR B S 1B B 15
other receivables 5(b) 1,206 2,987
Impairment of goodwill EERE 21 35,459 336
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE— R E QR 2 W& 26 (4,927) =
Change in fair value of REMEAFLERZE
investment property 20 - (2,182)
Loss on disposal of property, HENE - BRER
plant and equipment REZEE 646 92
Share-based payment LURR 1 BB > {2k 11 3,944 -
Operating cash flows before BEEEEHm
movements in working capital BEHERE (13,575) (24,768)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories 78 (Em) S (2,234) 31,313
Decrease in trade and other B 5 Kk HhEWRIE
receivables and deposits Rize R 87 94,758
Decrease in trade and other payables ES5REMEMNFERD (27,364) (56,347)
(Decrease)/increase in amount due to a BN —RBEEHIE
director Om4) /18 hn (2,000) 2,000
Increase in amount due to a shareholder F&{$— 3 I 5 7} I8 2 0 2,000 -
Cash (used in)/generated from X% (FrA) 58S
operations (43,086) 46,956
PRC enterprise income tax paid EHMPEEEFREH (3.447) (3,653)
Net cash (used in)/generated from {EZE¥X¥ (FRA) MEHRE
operation activities B (46,533) 43,303
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HEBERER

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZ=F
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2019 2018
—NEF —E-N\F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B & FHET FHE T
Investing activities B’EES
Interest received 2 A E 142 277
Purchase of property, BENE BERSZE
plant and equipment 18 (8,545) (5,832)
Proceeds from disposal of property, tH%W% BERZEZE
plant and equipment RIE 1,076 204
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary tlj’i 1 bt B8 A B Fr 8 SUIE 26 46,088 =
Net cash outflow from Hﬂlﬁ%lﬁ%"\jzfﬂﬁﬁﬂjé&ﬁﬁ
acquisition of subsidiaries (6,724) -
Net cash generated from/(used in) REFEFE, ~ (FA)
investing activities BeRHE 32,037 (5,351)
Financing activities A B
Interest paid EFFE (12,839) (13,776)
Decrease in pledged bank deposits 2 RRITERR D - 10,620
Proceeds from new bank borrowings I RIT BB RIE - 9,434
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITER (40,000) (71,489)
Proceeds from other borrowing HibERMERE - 100,000
Repayment of convertible notes BETBRRKRERE - (84,292)
Net proceeds from issue of new placing 2 {TH B &R B 2 T B FIE
shares FEE 13,127 =
Net cash used in financing activities REEERAREFHE (39,712) (49,503)
Net decrease in cash and ReRB&£EEHEH
cash equivalents mLBE (54,208) (11,551)
Cash and cash equivalents at the FMZReRBE&FERA
beginning of the year 91,922 93,721
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes #EE FE % % &) 2 £/ £ (8,898) 9,752
Cash and cash equivalents FRZUGRBSFERA
at the end of this year 28,816 91,922

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE=—E—hE=A=+—HILEE

80

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated as an exempted Company
with limited liabilities in the Cayman Islands and its shares
are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The address of the registered office of the Company is P.O.
Box 10008, Willow House, Cricket Square, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1001, Cayman Islands. The head office and principal
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong is located at
Room 1902, 19/F., 101 King's Road, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holdings.
The Group is principally engaged in pharmaceutical
wholesale and distribution business, and hemodialysis
treatment and consultancy service business in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC"). The activities of its principal
subsidiaries are set out in Note 24 to the consolidated

financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is the same as functional
currency of the Company, and the functional currency of
the most of the subsidiaries are Renminbi (“RMB"). The
Board of Directors considered that it is more appropriate to
present the consolidated financial statements in HK$ as the
shares of the Company are listed on the Stock Exchange. The
consolidated financial statements are rounded to the nearest
thousands (HK$'000), unless otherwise stated.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“"HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Company has applied, for the
first time, the following new and revised HKFRS and
interpretations (“new and revised HKFRSs"”) issued by the
HKICPA, which are effective for the Company’s financial year
beginning 1 April 2018. A summary of the new and revised

HKFRSs are set out as below:

HKFRS 2 (Amendments) Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions

HKFRS 4 (Amendments)  Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4

Insurance Contracts
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
amendments

Amendments to HKFRSs ~ Annual Improvement to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle

HKAS 40 (Amendments)  Transfers of Investment Property
HK(IFRIC) — Int 22

Foreign Currency Transactions

and Advance Consideration

Except as described below, for the application of the
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group's financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial

statements.

BRI REEITTEEME
BEEN([FEMBEREE
RI)

RAFE  AAREEREATHBES
BE AR BT R T B M
BHREEARDE ([HTREBTES
MBBEEA ) R BT RRE
BORAAAR-Z—\FHA—AMH
Yo 2 AR F A 3 o 3T SIS T BB
BREEA ZHERIIMT :

BEMBREEN UROXANRZZ
F25 (BRI A) PENREE

ERMBREERN FEUBREENFIRS

F45 (BT AK) BMIAREBMBRER
RlB4 RSN —OHE
i
BEMBHREEN SWIA
I
BERMBHEELN RARFENELEZWER
E15% HEER

BREMBREEN —T-WNEE-T-AF

S HEN) ERBBMBREERAN
FENE
BREEAF0F BRRENE
(BRTA)
B (ARYERE MEXZRBANRE
REZE9)
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE=—E—hE=A=+—HILEE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) — continued

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments replaces HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 April 2018, bringing
together all three aspects of the accounting for financial
instruments: classification and measurement, impairment
and hedge accounting.

The Group has recognised the transition adjustments against
the applicable opening balances in equity at 1 April 2018.
Therefore, the comparative information was not restated and
continues to be reported under HKAS 39.

(a) Classification and measurement
The table below illustrates the classification and
measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities
and other items subject to expected credit loss under
HKFRS 9 and HKAS 39 at the date of initial application,

BRI RIEETEEMER
HHEA([FRMBEWEER])
-
FEMBREENEORLHTA
ERMBREENLORSHMTAN=S
—~N\EMA - B2 %% R
REBEHEAELMI R IR
B RASRIASHARZ2N=AH
B ERGE RERM R ER.

AEEERR-ZE-N\FHNA-HZE
RIS ARERBERAE -Eit -kt
BRERTTEY SWERBERBEEBSE
RISE395R 2%, -

(a) HEREE
TRHAARBEBYBEREZERF
SREBETENEIGENERE
AEH-Z-N\FHA-—BNHHK
EERCRBERIINAMEES

1 April 2018. S ENHEMEBER 20 ERTE
1 April 2018
31 March 2018 Reclassification Remeasurement (Restated)
—2-\%
—E-N\fE mA—A
=R=+—-H ENSE EWHE (BE5)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET TET FTET FTET
Current assets RHEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 R EMERZHER
and deposits 7e 118,453 - (14,711) 103,742
Equity B
Reserves ] 152,791 - (11,495) 141,296
Non-controlling interests R R 55,141 = (3,216) 51,925

The measurement categories for all financial liabilities
remain the same. The carrying amounts for all financial
liabilities at the date of initial application have not
been impacted by the initial application of HKFRS 9.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE=—F—NE=A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) — continued
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments — continued

(b)

Impairment under ECL model

HKFRS 9 requires an impairment on debt instruments
recorded at amortised cost or at fair value through
other comprehensive income, lease receivables, loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts that
are not accounted for at fair value through profit
or loss under HKFRS 9, to be recorded based on an
expected credit loss model either on a twelve-month

basis or a lifetime basis.

In general, the directors anticipate that the application
of the expected credit loss model of HKFRS 9 will
result in earlier provision of credit losses which are
not yet incurred in relation to the Group’s financial
assets measured at amortised cost upon application of
HKFRS 9 by the Group. The Group applies the HKFRS
9 simplified approach to measure ECL which uses a
lifetime ECL for all trade receivables. Except for those
which had been determinated as credit impaired under
HKAS 39, ECL for other financial assets at amortised
cost, including deposits, other receivables and bank
balance, are assessed on 12-month ECL (“12m ECL")
basis as there had been no significant increase in credit

risk since initial recognition.

The Group was required to revise its impairment
methodology under HKFRS 9 for each of these classes
of assets. The impact of the change in impairment is as

follows.

BRI RIEETEEMER

HHEA([FRMBEWEER])

— &

FEEMBREENEIRLHTA

— &

(b) FHERERAITZHE
% 75 95 45 2 B S OSRAR E I AR AR
BEEMEREEAEREAT
Bt ABHNEE LB ER AR R
AFEHF A2 ERANEST
B - EYRERE  EREABRTS
ERANAERE I RIETE
EEBAERNE T —EA LN
TEAEEAR.

BEMS ESMAEASTEME
BEERFR 2RYPEEBER
N BERREFRBEESERE
MAAEEREREBYBREE
RIS AEERBERNATE
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EFR-AEEKRAEEMBRE
FRIESRBL R EFEEREZH
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE=—E—hE=A=+—HILEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") - continued
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments — continued

(b) Impairment under ECL model - continued
All loss allowances, including trade receivables, and
other receivables and deposits as at 31 March 2018

BRI RIEETEEMER

HER ([FEMBEREEMN])

-

FEMBRELENEORLHTA

—#

(b) RAMERBRAITZRE—®
BE-Z-—N\F=A=+—-AH0F
AERRE BEESEWHKER

reconciled to the opening loss allowances as at 1 April HihEWFHEUARESE_ZT— )\
2018 are as follows: FMA—HWHYEERELH RN
T
Other
receivables
Trade and
Receivables deposits
5 HMEWRREA
Y RIF REd
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#ET TFHET
As at 31 March 2018 — HKAS 39 RZZE—NE=H=+—H
— BB ST EAIZE395% 7,070 4,170
Amounts re-measured through ZEBBMYRGTEERFERESR
opening — accumulated loss and ENEZEH
non-controlling interests 13,729 982
At 1 April 2018 — HKFRS 9 (restated) HR=-Z—NENA—H-&H
B R & ERIF o (KREH) 20,799 5,152

The following tables summarised the impact, net of
tax, of transition HKFRS 9 on the opening balance of
accumulated losses and non-controlling interests 1

TREBUMBEZEBPIEREER
FORUW =T —NFEMA —BE:t
EBlERFEERESHNESHNTE

April 2018 as follow: (HIBRBIIE) AT
Non-
Accumulated controlling
losses interests
RitBE FRBER
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET
As at 31 March 2018 RZZE—NE=H=+—H (723,896) 55,141
Increase in expected credit loss BHEEEE ((RAGEEEE])
("ECLs") in — Trade and other EN-BESZREMERRER
receivables and deposits ®E (11,495) (3,216)
As at 1 April 2018 (restated) AZZE—NFWNA—H (KE5) (735,391) 51,925
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE=—F—NE=A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") - continued

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with

Customers
The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first time in the
current year. HKFRS 15 superseded HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS

11 Construction Contracts and the related interpretations.

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively with
the cumulative effect of initially applying this standard
recognised at the date of initial application, 1 April 2018.
Any difference at the date of initial application is recognised
in the opening accumulated loss (or other components of
equity, as appropriate) and comparative information has
not been restated. Furthermore, in accordance with the
transition provisions in HKFRS 15, the Group has elected
to apply the standard retrospectively only to the contracts
that are not completed at 1 April 2018. Accordingly,
certain comparative information may not be comparable
as comparative information was prepared with HKAS 18
Revenue and HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the

related interpretations.

The Group recognises revenue mainly from following major

sources which arise from contracts with customers.
- Pharmaceutical wholesale and distribution

- Hemodialysis treatment and consultancy service

business

Information about the Group's performance obligations and
the accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS
15 are disclosed in consolidated financial statements in Note
3.

ERHITRESCITEEMBE
HEA ([FEMBREEN])
— iR

FEREMBBEENB 1S REGEFS
HZiz
AEEERAFERERXNEREBYBR
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ERAENREESORE@ERE
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1555 MEXEAZERNRZEUR
BXEAAB=Z-—NFHOA—BER-
REXRERBHNEMEZERBRT
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BIAERBEILBRER LI REF
BB REEREISHABER A&
ECEEERRN -_E-N\FOA—HH
ARERNESNENEMAZED -FLL - A
RERERTDREE B ST ERF 185
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RiAERBER  HE ThE T REE
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers - continued

Except for the reclassification of the contract liabilities from
receipt in advance of HK$18,837,000 at initial application,
HKFRS 15 was generally adopted without restating any other

comparative information. There is no impact of transition to
HKFRS 15 on accumulated loss at 1 April 2018.

Impacts on opening consolidated statement of
financial position arising from the application of
all new standards

As a result of the changes in the Group's accounting policies
above, the opening consolidated statement of financial
position had to be restated. The following table show the
adjustments recognised for each of the line items affected.
Line items that were not affected by the changes have not

been included.

ERAHIIREETTEMBER
HEQ ([HFRMBHREEN])
—#&
ERAMBREENBISBRKXEEFS
HZ ki — &

R E R FE A RE518,837,0008 T 2 T8
WHRBEFIBERAENEAGN AEED
2EEMEBUBREERE 155 Mt
EBSEMAEMERER - BEZEBH
BREENBISHER T —N\FNA
—BREAFEEHETE

ERMAHITENHBMGS MK
AENEE

HRASEE EMSTTEENEE 1D
REVBRRRMAES - TRETHER
SHEHA AR - TREBTECRA
WABIEER -

1 April 2018
31 March 2018 HKFRS 9 HKFRS 15 (Restated)
k-2 18-
—2-)\E FRME FEME mA—A
=B=+-H BEEMNEER  BELUSE1SR (BEH)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$'000
TET TET FTET TET
Current assets mENEE
Trade and other BAREMERRER
receivables and deposits e 118,453 (14,711) - 103,742
Current liabilities bid bR
Trade and other payables ESREMENFHE
— Receipts in advance - FE 18,837 - (18,837) -
~ Contract liabilities —-BHER - - 18,837 18,837
Equity B
Reserves i 152,791 (11,495) - 141,296
Non-controlling interests FERER 55,141 (3,216) - 51,925
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") - continued
New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and

revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

HKFRS 9 (Amendments)

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(Amendments)

HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17

HKAS 19 (Amendments)

HKAS 28 (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HK(IFRIC) — Int 23

HKFRS 3 (Amendments)

HKAS 1 and HKAS 8
(Amendments)

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensations'

Sales or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Leases'

Insurance Contracts?

Employee Benefits'

Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures'

Annual Improvement to HKFRSs

2015-2017 Cycle!

Uncertainty Over Income Tax
Treatment'

Definition of a Business®

Definition of a Material*

ERHMIREESITERMEE
HER([FEMBREEN])

— iR

ERFERKRERZHITRESTE

RMEEEER

AEELERFEERAUTEHMERER
ERHHF RAEBR] BBV BREER

BREMBREEL

BEERECRAER
E9% (BFI ) g
ERNBREEN REFHABEQAFAR
FIOERBBET SECECEHEEN
AR 285 BREE
CCHEN)
BERMKEREER HE
51658
ERNBREEN RREY?
5175
ERGTES EERA
1955 (BRI A)
ERGTES REENARGELEY
52885 (BFT ) REER
ERMBREEN BRUEREEN-F-F
CCHEN) FER_Z-tFERH
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) — continued
New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet

effective — continued

1

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020.

Effective for business combination and asset acquisitions for
which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the
annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

The directors anticipate that, except as described below, the

application of other new and revised HKFRSs will have no

material impact on the results and the financial position of

the Group.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE=—F—NE=A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") - continued

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective — continued

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will
supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations

when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on
the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by a
customer. In addition, HKFRS 16 requires sales and leaseback
transactions to be determined based on the requirements
of HKFRS 15 as to whether the transfer of the relevant
asset should be accounted as a sale. HKFRS 16 also includes

requirements relating to subleases and lease modifications.

Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are
removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model
where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability have
to be recognised for all leases by lessees, except for short-

term leases and leases of low value assets.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective — continued

HKFRS 16 Leases — continued

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions)
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The
lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the
lease payments that are not paid at that date. Subsequently,
the lease liability is adjusted for interest and lease payments,
as well as the impact of lease modifications, amongst others.
For the classification of cash flows, the Group currently
presents upfront prepaid lease payments as investing cash
flows in relation to leasehold lands for owned use and those
classified as investment properties while other operating
lease payments are presented as operating cash flows. Upon
application of HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to lease
liability will be allocated into a principal and an interest
portion which will be presented as financing and operating

cash flows respectively by the Group.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE=—F—NE=A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") - continued

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective — continued

HKFRS 16 Leases — continued

Other than certain requirements which are also applicable
to lessor, HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor
accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and continues to
require a lessor to classify a lease either as an operating lease

or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of HK$29,060,000 as disclosed
in Note 43. A preliminary assessment indicates that these
arrangements will meet the definition of a lease. Upon
application of HKFRS 16, the Group will recognise a right-of-
use asset and a corresponding liability in respect of all these

leases unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective — continued

HKFRS 16 Leases — continued

The application of new requirements may result in changes
in measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated
above. The Group intends to elect the practical expedient to
apply HKFRS 16 to contracts that were previously identified
as leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease and not apply this
standard to contracts that were not previously identified as
containing a lease applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4.
Therefore, the Group will not reassess whether the contracts
are, or contain a lease which already existed prior to the date
of initial application. Furthermore, the Group intends to elect
the modified retrospective approach for the application of
HKFRS 16 as lessee and will recognise the cumulative effect
of initial application to opening accumulated losses without

restating comparative information.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by HKICPA. In addition,
these consolidated financial statements also include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock
Exchange and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (“CO").
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE=—F—NE=A=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Statement of compliance - continued

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgment in areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial

statements.

A summary of significant accounting policies followed by
the Group in the preparation of the consolidated financial

statements is set out below:

Basis of preparation

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements is historical cost except
for certain financial instruments and investment property
that are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting

period, as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the

consideration of given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes
into account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/
or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for share—
based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of
HKAS 17, and measurements that have some similarities to
fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value
in HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE=—E—hE=A=+—HILEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. EX®iHBFEHE-—15
POLICIES - continued

Basis of preparation - continued WREE-—&

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value W R EBREENMS A FEFE
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based BEAFEFEGARBEUTEHEEEER
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value BAHBHATEFEZEREEZMD
measurements are observable and the significance of the BRE—R EF_RRE=H > ARBWT :

inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which

are described as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active e ZE—RWMAHBEARERUNEER
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity ERMvREEEREBENERTIE
can access at the measurement date; B (RESFE) FRE

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices s EHRBABBARAEEIEEBUE
included within Level 1, that are observable for the EREEREENE AYE (A%
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and — MR EBRI) I R

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or e FEZRBMAHBELREERBEBENT
liability. CIEES PN ¢

The principal accounting policies are set out below. FESTTHERINMT o

Basis of consolidation ReR%

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the FEUBRBREMARDARBARATARE

financial statements of the Company and entities (including MEARMEZEHER (EEEBHEER)

structured entities) controlled by the Company and its Z IR o BN A BB U T 155 B Bl BY
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company: BEHIRE:

e has power over the investee; e THIREERITEED

e s exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its e HIRBEZHEZIREERIAUZMDORK
involvement with the investee; and AERBIZEEF K

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns. e FHRICAHEIZEHDR-
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 ZE=—B— hE=A=+—HLLEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Basis of consolidation — continued
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to

one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting
rights of an investee, it has power over the investee when
the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability
to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally.
The Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether or not the Group's voting rights in an

investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

o the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote

holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote

holders or other parties;

o rights arising from other contractual arrangements;

and

o any additional facts and circumstances that indicate
that the Group has, or does not have, the current
ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that
decisions need to be made, including voting patterns at

previous shareholders’ meetings.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Basis of consolidation — continued

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiaries and ceases when the Group
loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and
expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated income statement from
the date the Group gains control until the date when the

Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income
of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the

non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies

into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of

the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Basis of consolidation - continued

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests
and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries.
Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity

and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (i) the previous carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and
any non-controlling interests. All amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to
that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary
(i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in the
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement or, when applicable, the cost
on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a

joint venture.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised

in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,

except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits

respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2

Share-based Payment at the acquisition date; and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are

measured in accordance with that standard.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Business combinations - continued

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after
reassessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as

a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially
measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured
at their fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified
in another HKFRSs.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date
when the Group obtains control), and the resulting gain or
loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising
from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date
that have previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment

would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Business combinations - continued

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period (see above), or additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts
and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date
that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognised
as of that date.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the
contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-
date fair value and included as part of the consideration
transferred in a business combination. Changes in the
fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify
as measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments against
goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are adjustments
that arise from additional information obtained during the
“measurement period” (which cannot exceed one year from
the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that

existed at the acquisition date.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE=—F—NE=A=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Business combinations - continued

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value
of the contingent consideration that do not qualify
as measurement period adjustments depends on how
the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured
at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent settlement
is accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration
that is classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates in accordance with HKAS 39, or
HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets, as appropriate, with the corresponding gain or loss

being recognised in profit or loss.

Goodwill
Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business

less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash —generating Units (or groups of
CGUs) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the

combination.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Goodwill - continued

A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently when there is
indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable
amount of the CGU is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to
the other assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. An impairment loss recognised for

goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributable amount of
goodwill is included in the determination of the profit or loss

on disposal.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statements of financial position at cost less accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment

losses, if any.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE=—F—NE=A=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Property, plant and equipment - continued

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure
incurred after the property, plant and equipment have been
put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income in the period in
which it is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly
demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an
increase in the future economic benefits expected to be
obtained from the use of the property, plant and equipment,
the expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of that

asset.

Construction in progress represents property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production or
for its own use purposes. Construction in progress is carried
at cost less any recognised impairment loss. Construction in
progress is classified to the appropriate category of property,
plant and equipment when completed and ready for
intended use. Depreciation of these assets commences when
the assets are ready for their intended use and depreciates

on the same basis as other property assets.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Property, plant and equipment - continued
Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, using the straight-line
method, over its estimated useful life. The principal annual
rates are as follows:

Leasehold improvements Over lease term

Motor vehicle 20%
Office equipment 20%
Medicine equipment 20%

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is the difference between the
net sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset, and is recognised in the consolidated statement of

profit and loss and other comprehensive income.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwiill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
with finite useful lives to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to
which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual CGUs, or otherwise they are allocated
to the smallest group of cash generating units for which a

reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE=—F—NE=A=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill - continued

Intangible assets with indefinite useful fives and intangible
assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at
least annually, and whenever there is an indication that they

may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash

flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying mount of
the asset (or a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or

loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a CGU) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date/settlement date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or

convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from
contracts with customers which are initially measured in
accordance with HKFRS 15 since 1 January 2018. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value
of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately

in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying

amount on initial recognition.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE=—F—NE=A=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with
transitions in Note 2)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are

subsequently measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;

and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and

interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are

subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

. the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting

contractual cash flows and selling; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and

interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that at the date of initial application/initial
recognition of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an
equity investment in OCI if that equity investment is neither
held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised
by an acquirer in a business combination to which HKFRS 3

Business Combinations applies.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial assets — continued

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with
transitions in Note 2) — continued

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently
at amortised cost and debt instruments/receivables
subsequently measured at FVTOCI. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset, except for financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired (see
below). For financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset from the next reporting period. If the credit
risk on the credit— impaired financial instrument improves so
that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period following the

determination that the asset is no longer credit impaired.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial
assets which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9
(including trade receivables, other receivable and deposits.
The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to

reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial assets — continued

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with
transitions in Note 2) — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL")
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to
result from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. Assessment are done based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at the

reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The ECL on trade receivables are assessed individually for
debtors with significant balances and/or collectively using a

provision matrix with appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since

initial recognition.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial assets — continued
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial

assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with

3.

EXEMHRRBE &

MBERE-&
MERENSBRAEME (RIEME2
MBEAFXERATEMBEREENTIR

transitions in Note 2) - continued %) —#&
Significant increase in credit risk 1= B [ 2 X 15 48 0

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both
guantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without undue

cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased

significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal

credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit

spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to

meet its debt obligations;
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial assets — continued

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with
transitions in Note 2) — continued

Significant increase in credit risk — continued

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the

operating results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the

debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 90 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that

demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to
ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant

increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial assets — continued

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with
transitions in Note 2) — continued

Definition of default — continued

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default
has occurred when a financial asset is more than 180 days
past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default

criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
of default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit— impaired includes

observable data about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the

borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due

event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise

consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial

asset because of financial difficulties.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial assets — continued

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with
transitions in Note 2) — continued

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when the
amounts are over two years past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group's recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event.

Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined with

the respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate determined

at initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE=—E—hE=A=+—HILEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial assets — continued

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with
transitions in Note 2) — continued

Measurement and recognition of ECL — continued

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for
cases where evidence at the individual instrument level may
not yet be available, the financial instruments are grouped

on the following basis:

° Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group's trade
and other receivables, finance lease receivables and
amounts due from customers are each assessed as a
separate group. Loans to related parties are assessed

for expected credit losses on an individual basis);
o Past-due status;
o Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
o External credit ratings where available.
The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure
the constituents of each group continue to share similar
credit risk characteristics.
Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is

credit impaired, in which case interest income is calculated

based on amortised cost of the financial asset.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE=—F—NE=A=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial assets — continued

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with
transitions in Note 2) — continued

Measurement and recognition of ECL — continued

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their
carrying amount, with the exception of trade receivables
and other receivables and deposits where the corresponding

adjustment is recognised through a loss allowance account.

Financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on

1 April 2018)

The Group’s financial assets are classified into loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the
time of initial recognition. All regular purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the

market place.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE=—E—hE=A=+—HILEE

116

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on

1 April 2018) - continued

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on

initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt

instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including trade receivables and other receivables,
pledged bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents) are
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method,

less any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for the short-term receivables where the

recognition of interest would be immaterial.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE=—F—NE=A=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on

1 April 2018) - continued

Effective interest method — continued

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired when there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated

future cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of

impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or

counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in

interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

o disappearance of an active market for that financial

asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
receivables and others receivables, assets that are assessed
not to be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed
for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the
Group's past experience of collecting payments, an increase
in die number of delayed payments in the portfolio past
the average credit period of 90 days, observable changes
in national or local economic conditions that correlate with

default on receivables.
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118

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on

1 April 2018) - continued

Effective interest method — continued

Impairment of financial assets

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial

asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment

loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade and other receivables, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade and other
receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts

previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the

impairment not been recognised.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE=—F—NE=A=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and

an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a group entity
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue

costs.

Repurchase of the Company’'s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or

cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Convertible notes

The component parts of compound instruments (convertible
notes) issued by the Company are classified separately
as financial liabilities and equity in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
Conversion option that will be settled by the exchange of a
fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of the Company’'s own equity instruments is an

equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component
is estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for
similar non-convertible instruments. This amount is recorded
as a liability on an amortised cost basis using the effective
interest method until extinguished upon conversion or at the

instrument’s maturity date.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE=—E—hE=A=+—HILEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial liabilities and equity instruments — continued
Convertible notes — continued

The conversion option classified as equity is determined by
deducting the amount of the liability component from the
fair value of the compound instrument as a whole. This
is recognised and included in equity, net of income tax
effects, and is not subsequently remeasured. In addition, the
conversion option classified as equity will remain in equity
until the conversion option is exercised, in which case, the
balance recognised in equity will be transferred to share
premium/other equity. When the conversion option remains
unexercised at the maturity date of the convertible notes,
the balance recognised in equity will be transferred to
retained profits/other equity. No gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of the conversion

option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
notes are allocated to the liability and equity components
in proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds.
Transaction costs relating to the equity component are
recognised directly in equity. Transaction costs relating to the
liability component are included in the carrying amount of
the liability component and are amortised over the lives of

the convertible notes using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as other financial liabilities.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including trade and other payables,
amount due to a director, amount due to a shareholder and
other borrowing) are subsequently measured at amortised

cost using the effective interest method.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE=—F—NE=A=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial liabilities and equity instruments — continued
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on

initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and recognises an associated liability.
If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises

a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is

recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE=—E—hE=A=+—HILEE

122

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Derecognition — continued

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its
entirety, the Group allocates the previous carrying amount
of the financial asset between the part it continues to
recognise, and the part it no longer recognises on the basis
of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of
the transfer. The difference between the carrying amount
allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the
sum of the consideration received for the part no longer
recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income
is recognised in profit or loss. A cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is
allocated between the part that continues to be recognised
and the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the

relative fair values of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
they expire. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration

paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost, which comprises all costs of purchase and,
where applicable, other costs that have been incurred
in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition, is calculated using the first-in, first-out method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business less all estimated costs

necessary to make the sale.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE=—F—NE=A=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and pledged bank deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an

integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
positions, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand

and cash at banks, which are not restricted to use.

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in Note 2)

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance

obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of

distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in Note 2) - continued

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of

the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group's performance as

the Group performs;

o the Group's performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group

performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance

completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the

customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in accordance
with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group's unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only
the passage of time is required before payment of that

consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is

due) from the customer.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE=—F—NE=A=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in Note 2) - continued

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to a contract
are accounted for an presented on a net basis.

Revenue from the wholesale and distribution of
pharmaceutical and related products is recognised when
control of the products has transferred, being at the point
the products are delivered to the customer and the customer
has accepted the products, and there is no unfulfilled
obligation that could affect the customer’s acceptance of
the products. Delivery occurs when the products have been
shipped to the specified location, the risks of obsolescence
and loss have been transferred to the customer, and either
the customer has accepted the products in accordance with
the sales contract, the acceptance provisions have lapsed,
or the Group has objective evidence that all criteria for
acceptance have been satisfied.

Revenue from these sales of pharmaceutical and related
products is recognised based on the price specified in the
contract, net of discounts, returns and value added taxes.

A receivable is recognised when the products are delivered
and the customers accept the products, as this is the point in
time that the consideration is unconditional because only the
passage of time is required before the payment is due.

Revenue from the provision of hemodialysis treatment and
consultancy services which are recognised at a point in time
when the services are rendered.

The Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset except for financial assets that subsequently become
credit-impaired. For credit impaired financial assets, the
effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount
of the financial asset (after deduction of the loss allowance).
Interest income is presented as “interest income” where it
is mainly earned from financial assets that are held for cash
management purposes.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Revenue recognition (prior to 1 April 2018)
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and revenue and
costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income as follows:

(a) Sales of goods
Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyers, provided that the Group
maintains neither managerial involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership, nor effective
control over the goods sold;

(b) Provision of hemodialysis treatment and
consultancy services
Revenue from provision of hemodialysis treatment and
consultancy services is recognised when the services are
provided;

(c) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using effective interest method. When a
receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the
carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the
estimated future cash flows discounted at original
effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues
unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest
income on impaired loans is recognised using the
original effective interest rate; and

(d) Rental income
Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, leave passage
and the cost to the Group of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the period in which the associated services are
rendered by employees of the Group. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be material,
these amounts are stated at their present values.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Employee benefits - continued

Contributions to Mandatory Provident Funds as required
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance and to the state-managed retirement benefits
schemes for the employees of the Group’s overseas entities
are recognised as an expense in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as

incurred.

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only when,
the Group demonstrably commits itself to terminate
employment or to provide benefits as a result of voluntary
redundancy by having a detailed formal plan which is

without realistic possibility of withdrawal.

Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit
plans under which the Group pays fixed contributions into
separate entities such as social security plans in the PRC,
and the Group has no legal or constructive obligation to
pay further contributions if any of the funds do not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to
employee services in the current and prior periods. The
Group’s contributions to defined contribution plans are

recognised in the financial year to which they relate.

Share options granted
Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the fair

value of the equity instruments at the grant date.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Share options granted - continued

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into
consideration all non-market vesting conditions is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the
Group's estimate of equity instruments that will eventually
vest, with a corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve). At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments
expected to vest based on assessment of all relevant non-
market vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of the
original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate,
with a corresponding adjustment to the share options
reserve. For share options that vest immediately at the
date of grant, the fair value of the share options granted is

expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share capital and share premium. When the share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised
at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share

options reserve be transferred to accumulated losses.

Income tax
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because it excludes items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years,
and it further excludes consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income items that are never

taxable or deductible.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Income tax — continued

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable
on differences between the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and
is accounted for using the liability method. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary difference can
be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill (or negative
goodwill) or from the initial recognition (other than a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the

accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investment in subsidiaries and
associate, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be

available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Income tax — continued

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply to the period when the liability is settled or the
asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax is charged or credited to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, except when it relates to items
charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the

deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of

its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts
of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time,

rather than through sale.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE=—F—NE=A=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Income tax - continued

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they related to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from
the initial accounting for a business combination, the
tax effect is included in the accounting for the business

combination.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past events
and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of
the amount of the obligation can be made. Provisions are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted
to reflect the current best estimate. Where the effect of the
time value of money is material, the amount of a provision
is the present value of the expenditures expected to be

required to settle the obligations.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group.
It can also be a present obligation arising from past events
that is not recognised because it is not probable that outflow
of economic resources will be required or the amount of

obligation cannot be measured reliably.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

- continued

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements. When
a change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that
outflow is probable, they will then be recognised as a

provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past
events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain

events not wholly within the control of the Group.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements when an
inflow of economic benefits is probable. When inflow is

virtually certain, an asset is recognised.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a

foreign currency are not retranslated.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Foreign currencies - continued
Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in

profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for:

o exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings
relating to assets under construction for future
productive use, which are included in the cost of those
assets when they are regarded as an adjustment to

interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings;

o exchange differences on transactions entered into in

order to hedge certain foreign currency risks; and

o exchange differences on monetary items receivable
from or payable to a foreign operation for which
settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur
(therefore forming part of the net investment in the
foreign operation), which are recognised initially in
other comprehensive income and reclassified from
equity to profit or loss on repayment of the monetary

items.

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and
expense items are translated at the average exchange rates
for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during that period, in which case the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under the heading of foreign
currency translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling

interests as appropriate).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Foreign currencies - continued

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a
joint arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign
operation of which the retained interest becomes a financial
asset), all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity
in respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the

Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation that does not result in the
Group losing control over the subsidiary, the proportionate
share of accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed
to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in profit
or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals
of associates or joint arrangements that do not result in
the Group losing significant influence or joint control),
the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange

differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed through acquisition of a
foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of that
foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive

income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in
connection with the borrowing of funds. All borrowing costs
are charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income in the period in which they
are incurred.

Government Grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received. Government grants that become receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for
the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they become receivable.

Related party transactions
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group, if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parent.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiaries is related to the
others);

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member);
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Related party transactions — continued

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies: — continued

(iii)

(iv)

(vii)

(viii)

both entities are joint ventures of the same third

party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and

the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group. If the Group is
itself such a plan, the sponsoring employees are

also related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a

parent of the entity); or

the entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the

Group.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Related party transactions — continued
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: — continued

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influence by, that person in their dealings with the

entity and include:

(@) that person’s children and spouse or domestic

partner;

(b) children of that person’s spouse or domestic

partner; and

(c) dependents of the person or that person’s spouse

or domestic partner.

A transaction is considered to be a related party
transaction when there is a transfer of resources or
obligations between the Group and a related party,

regardless of whether a price is charged.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.
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138

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Leasing - continued

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the
consolidated income statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an

expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets
of the Group at their fair value at the inception of the
lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum
lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor
is included in the consolidated statement of financial
position as a finance lease obligation. Lease payments are
apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the
lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest
on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are
charged directly to the consolidated statement of profit or

loss and other comprehensive income.

Rental payable under operating leases are charged to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the terms
of the relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable as an
incentive to enter into an operating lease are recognised
as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a

straight-line basis.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Prepaid lease payments for land use rights

Prepaid lease payments for land use rights is stated as
cost less subsequent accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. The cost of interest in
leasehold land are amortised on a straight-line basis over the

relevant interest in leasehold land.

Investment property

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation (including property under
construction for such purpose). Investment properties
are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are measured at fair value. Gains and losses arising from
changes in the fair value of investment properties are

included in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the net
asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in which the

property is derecognised.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial information, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group's

various lines of business and geographical locations.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Segment reporting — continued

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they

share a majority of these criteria.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in Note 3, management is required
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may

differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both

current and future periods.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES - continued

The following are the critical judgments, apart from those
involving estimations, that the directors have made in the
process of applying the Group accounting policies and that
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised

in the consolidated financial statements.

(@) Income taxes and deferred taxation
The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous
tax authorities. Significant judgment is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such difference will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such

determination is made.
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4.

142

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES - continued

(b) Useful lives and impairment of property,

plant and equipment

In accordance with HKAS 16, the Group estimates the
useful lives of property, plant and equipment in order
to determine the amount of depreciation expenses to
be recorded. The useful lives are estimated at the time
the asset is acquired based on historical experience,
the expected usage, wear and tear of the assets, as
well as technical obsolescence arising from changes in
the market demands or service output of the assets.
The Group also performs annual reviews on whether
the assumptions made on useful lives continue to be
valid. The Group tests annually whether the assets have
suffered any impairment. The recoverable amount of
an asset or a cash generating unit is determined based
on the higher of its value in use or its fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. These calculations
of the value in use are determined based on cash flow
projections with reasonable assumptions that represent
management’s best estimate of the range of economic
conditions over the remaining useful life of the assets.
Changes in facts and circumstances may result in
revisions to whether an indication of impairment exists
and revised estimates of recoverable amounts, which
would affect profit of loss in future years. And the fair
value less costs of disposal is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at

the measurement date.

During the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018, the
Group did not provide any impairment for property,

plant and equipment.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES - continued

(c)

(d)

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group performs annual tests on whether there has
been impairment of goodwill in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in Note 3. The recoverable
amounts of CGUs are determined based on value-in-
use calculations and fair value less costs of disposal.
The calculation of value-in-use require the use of
estimates and assumptions made by management on
the future operation of the business, pre-tax discount
rates, and other assumptions underlying the value-
in-use calculations. And the fair value less costs of
disposal is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group
had provided HK$35,459,000 (2018: HK$336,000)
impairment on goodwill and disclosed in Note 21.

Provision of ECL for trade receivables and
other financial assets

The loss allowances for financial assets at amortised
cost are based on assumptions about risk of default
and expected loss rates. The Group uses judgement in
making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to
the impairment calculation, based on the Group's past
history, existing market conditions as well as forward
looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.
Detail of the key assumptions and inputs used are
disclosed in Note 5(b).

As at 31 March 2019, the carrying amount of trade
receivables and other receivables and deposits are
approximately HK$20,020,000 and HK$11,486,000
respectively (net of loss allowance of approximately
HK$11,726,000 and approximately HK$2,188,000
respectively).

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in
estimates. The information about the ECL and the
Group trade receivables and other receivables and
deposits are set out in Note 5(b) and Note 23.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 5. &#MTH
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) &MIA®A
2019 2018
—E—hEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#xT FH& T
Financial assets MEEE
Measured at amortised cost BB ER AT 2
— trade and other receivables —-BSZREMEWFIE
and deposits ke 31,506 -
— cash and cash equivalents - RekBREZLEEER 28,816 =
60,322 -
Loans and receivables B R K EWERIE
— trade and other receivables —-E 5 REMEKFIE
and deposits Ei&e - 103,327
- cash and cash equivalents -BHeRREEEBEE - 91,922
- 195,249
Financial liabilities HBEBEARR
At amortised cost 2 8 68 A 7N
— trade and other payables —EZRHMENRIE 28,236 118,431
— amount due to a director - —RESHE - 2,000
— amount due to a shareholder — B —BRERRIE 2,000 =
— other borrowing —HMEE 60,000 100,000
90,236 220,431

144 WANIJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019




- Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e b 4 9 T

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE=—F—NE=A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 5. &#MTH-&
(b) HERBREEAERKE

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies

The Group's major financial instruments include trade
and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents,
trade and other payables, other borrowing, amount
due to a shareholder and amount due to a director.
The details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments and the policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a

timely and effective manner.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate
risk and currency risk. The directors review and agree
policies for managing each of these risks and they are

summarised below.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The credit risk of the Group mainly arises from bank
balances, trade and other receivables and deposits.
The carrying amounts of these balances represent the
Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to

financial assets.
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5.

146

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued

Credit risk and impairment assessment - continued
In respect of cash deposited at banks, the credit risk
is considered to be low as the counterparties are
reputable banks. The existing counterparties do not
have defaults in the past. Therefore, expected credit
loss rate of cash at bank is assessed to be close to zero

and no provision was made as of 31 March 2019.

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide
for expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9,
which permits the use of the lifetime expected credit
loss provision for all trade receivables. To measure the
expected credit losses, trade receivables have been
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics. The
Group has performed historical analysis and identified
the key economic variables impacting credit risk and
expected credit loss. It considers available reasonable

and supportive forwarding-looking information.

The Group makes periodic assessments on the
recoverability of the receivables based on the
background and reputation of the customers, historical

settlement records and past experience.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE=—F—NE=A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 5. &#MTH-&
(b) HERREEEAERME &

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued

Credit risk and impairment assessment - continued
Majority of the Group’s revenue is received from
individual customers in relation to wholesale and
distribution of pharmaceutical and related products
and provision of hemodialysis treatment and
consultancy services. The Group’s trade receivables
arise from wholesale and distribution of pharmaceutical
and related products and provision of hemodialysis

treatment and consultancy services.

As at the end of the year, the top five debtors
accounted for approximately 51.1% (2018: 39.1%)
of the Group’s trade receivables balance. In view of
the history of business dealings with the debtors and
the sound collection history of the receivables due
from them, management believes that there is no
material credit risk inherent in the Group’s outstanding
receivable balance due from these debtors saved for
the debtor related to the impaired trade receivables

disclosed in the below.
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5.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued

Credit risk and impairment assessment - continued
Management makes periodic assessment on the
recoverability of the trade and other receivables based
on historical payment records, the length of overdue
period, the financial strength of the debtors and

whether there are any disputes with the debtors.

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
These evaluations focus on the customer’s past
history of making payments when due and current
ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to the
economic environment in which the customer operates.
Trade receivables are due within 30 to 90 days for
pharmaceutical wholesale and distribution business
and 5 to 365 days for hemodialysis treatment and
consultancy services from the date of billing. Normally,

the Group does not obtain collateral from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECL, which
is calculated using a provision matrix. As the Group’s
historical credit loss experience does not indicate
significantly different loss patterns for different
customer segments, the loss allowance based on past
due status is not further distinguished between the

Group's different customer bases.

WANIJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019

5.

eMI AR
(b) MERREEEARRBR &

15 S5 R B3 B iR (E A 4 —
EEERBEBANBEMNRT
% R EBANRBEIR
HEBAREEEMMG  EHF
& 2 M W TE I H Al R W AR SK AN
ABREIRE-

rEBHMEERBBE—EGES
ENEFPETENEET G -ZZ
FEERREFBARKED R
MEMRCHERBAIMNERED I
ZREFNBEERNURETEFEE
FEEBRIRE B 5 WG IEN
ERFAMEHERMBRIHE
M S MA30290K A EI 8 » M MK
ENEERBHARBENSE365KA
BE e —RME XEEBFREREF
ALK S o

FEERBSNERBRBERTE
ZEHEHEEBRNESETEE
SRR zEERBE ARAEH
ZBAECEBEEERYEHRTER
FAddBErERBEEXEZE R
BASREAE 2 BERELER
AEEFARAEFER-EE-—TE

7 e



-3 I Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e b 4 9 T
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 5. &#MTH-&
(b) HERREEEAERME &

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued

Provision matrix — debtors’ ageing

As part of the Group's credit risk management, the
Group uses debtors’ ageing to assess the impairment
for its customers in relation to its wholesale and
distribution of pharmaceutical and related products
business and provision of hemodialysis treatment and
consultancy services business because these customers
consist of a large number of small customers with
common risk characteristics that are representative
of the customers’ abilities to pay all amounts due in
accordance with the contractual terms. The following
table provides information about the exposure to credit
risk for trade receivables which are assessed based on
provision matrix as at 31 March 2019 within lifetime

ECL (not credit impaired).
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 5. #MI AR
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) MERKREERHERBE &
policies — continued
Provision matrix — debtors’ ageing — continued 1% s 26 P — FE U FR IR AR S — 4R
Gross
Average carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FEBEE #EmE 1R R
% HK$'000 HK$'000
TH#T TH#T
Current (not past due) BIER (RiEER) 6.1 9,108 559
1 - 90 days BIHA1ZE90K 8.1 11,962 973
91 - 180 days BHI91ZE 180K 61.6 1,254 772
Over 180 days past due  HIHEIHEB180K 100 9,422 9,422
31,746 11,726
The estimated loss rates are estimated based on AstEEEDEREWRREFRRA
historical observed default rates over the expected FREFHRABEMBZIELEN
life of the debtors and are adjusted for forward- ZOWERBRBFENHBZHARE
looking information that is available without undue 70 BN E] R 1S Y Al I 1 B R E B
cost or effort. The grouping is regularly reviewed by Bt AR EEETEHRE  BR
management to ensure relevant information about BREBFERBFIENEEEREE
specific debtors is updated. 3o
During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group RBE-_Z-NFE=RA=+—HL
reversed of approximately HK$5,994,000 impairment FE - AEERBEREEERE S
allowance for trade receivables, based on the provision FE U R I8 38 BRI E #4549 5,994,000
matrix. BTT °
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 5. T HR-#&

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) MEREEERHERBE &

policies — continued

Provision matrix — debtors’ ageing - continued

The closing loss allowances for trade receivables and
other financial assets at amortised cost as at 31 March
2019 reconcile to the opening loss allowances as

15 S5 R B3 — FE Mo B 3% AR S —

REZZB-NF=ZB=1+—-HE&#H
BAGTEZ2E 5 BERERH A
BEENHRBREBREEBAER

follows: BE2HERNT :
Other
Trade receivables
receivables and deposits
Hfth R R\
HeEKRRE k&
HK$°000 HK$°000
FExT T8
At 31 March 2018 (HKAS 39) R=Z-NF=A=+—
H (&BE5H%EE
£395%) 7,070 4,170
Amounts re-measured through opening EBHPAEHFTE 2L
— Accumulated losses and —ZEER
non-controlling interests R 13,729 982
At 1 April 2018 (HKFRS 9) RZZE—N\FMA—H
(BB KHRESEER
£95%) 20,799 5,152
Disposal of a subsidiary HE —EME A (3,079) (4,170)
Provision/(reversal) of FAREZEER 2
loss allowance recognised BERE (BE)
in profit or loss during the year (5,994) 1,206
At 31 March 2019 (HKFRS 9) RZB-NAF=ZA=+—
H(EBHMBEHRS
Z BRI 95%) 11,726 2,188

Impairment losses on trade receivables are presented
as net impairment losses within operating profit.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited against the same line item.

For other receivables and deposits relating to accounts
that are long overdue with significant amounts
known insolvencies or non-response to collection
activities, they are assessed individually for impairment
allowance. The Group recognised the provision for
expected credit losses by assessing the credit risk
characteristics of debtor, discount rate and the
likelihood of recovery and considering the prevailing
economic conditions.

BEZRVHIRZBREBEREE R
FMAZIBHEBEFHE - HRW
Bz A EME SN ERIEERE X
iR e

HNEMERRERERBEHN
EARFIE -BHRERAE B BE
BEHEOENRFEBENEEM
= SEEFARERE AEEE
BALEEFZANCEERRBE B
BRERBEATEMELERERN
FERR  BRAREEEERE -

EREEZERERAR
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 5. EMIR-&
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) MERKREERHERBE &
policies — continued
Liquidity risk REZERAE
Liquidity risk is the risk that funds will not be available REBECERABELIESESEN
to meet liabilities as they fall due, and it results ZIREENEKE  BERKRIVEE
from amount and maturity mismatches of assets and EEREELERI A WER
liabilities. The Group will consistently maintain a AEEZ—MBETF REFEBK
prudent financial policy and ensure that it maintains BE TRRES TS EHSUES
sufficient cash to meet its liquidity requirements. HREELFE-
The following tables detail Group's contractual TRHANAEBFKEB2EHNE
maturity for its financial liabilities. The tables have been HER - WRBEAEEREEE
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of EHHHEEGEREBEESRE
financial liabilities which are the earliest dates of the FEE-TXREFEFNEEFTEEER
Group can be required to pay. The tables include both 2o
interest and principal cash flows.
Weight
average  On demand Total
effective or within Over undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 1 year cash flow amount
migFy BEXRY FUARE
ERf® R—%£R BE—-% RESE IR fE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THET THET THT
As at 31 March 2019 RZB-n%¥=A=+-H
Trade and other payables EaREMEMSE - 28,236 - 28,236 28,236
Amount due to a shareholder B —BRRRE - 2,000 - 2,000 2,000
Other borrowing Hitfe & 8.2 67,500 - 67,500 60,000
97,736 - 97,736 90,236
Weight
average On demand Total
effective or within Over  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 1 year cash flow amount
MEFH RERS FERRE
BERF= R-FR BE-F RELHE RHE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TERL TERL TERL
As at 31 March 2018 R=B-NE=ZBF=t1-H
Trade and other payables EaREMEMFKE - 118,431 - 118,431 118,431
Amount due to a director E—2E=5E - 2,000 - 2,000 2,000
Other borrowing Hife & 8.2 117,500 - 117,500 100,000
237,931 - 237,931 220,431
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 5. &#MTH-&
(b) HERREEEAERME &

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued

Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity management
rests with the board of directors, which has built an
appropriate liquidity risk management framework
for the management of the Group’s short, medium
and long-term funding and liquidity management
requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk by
maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and
reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring
forecast and actual cash flows and matching the

maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group has no available
unutilised short and medium-term bank loan facilities
(2018: HK$ Nil).

Interest rate risk

As at 31 March 2019, no cash flow interest rate risk
due to no bank borrowings and the interest rate of
other borrowing was fixed (2018: HK$ Nil).

The Group currently does not have any interest rate
hedging policy. However, the management monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider hedging

significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.

RBRERBEETE
ExeRAEERDESARZR
REE MESSCEL—EEE
ZhBETREBERER AUE
BEXEEzES THRRHES

RBETEEFTR-AEEHER
REREZRFEH RITEERRE
BERE URSEEHEIRER
REnBETER BEMBEE
kMBEEZEMER EUEE
REBETRER -

R=ZZF-NF=ZR=1+—-HB &X&
EHERDAEHRRFHRTER
B(ZE-N\F:T8x)-

LIRS N
R=ZZFB-NAF=ZA=+—-—B8 #HR
TERITEERAMEEREEF
o HEBERSRENEEAR (=F
—NF TERT) -

7N £ B 35 B 36 S E A R 2R 80 B
KoM EEESEEFREAR
TEREFERZERBHYFERFER
[ B o

EREEZERERAR
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued

Currency risk

Foreign exchange risk arises when future commercial
transactions or recognised assets and liabilities are
denominated in a currency that is not the entity's

functional currency.

The main operations of the Group were in the PRC and
most of the transactions were denominated in RMB.
Foreign exchange risk arises from the foreign currency
denominated of commercial transactions, assets and
liabilities. The Group has no significant direct exposure
to foreign currencies as most of the commercial
transactions, assets and liabilities are denominated in
a currency as the functional currency of each entity of

the Group.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group will
monitor its foreign currency exposure closely and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure

should the need arise.

WANIJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE=—F—NE=A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued

Fair value measurement

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities

are determined as follows:

(i)

(i)

The fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities with standard terms and conditions and
traded in active markets are determined with
reference to quoted market bid and ask prices

respectively.

The fair values of other financial assets
and financial liabilities (excluding derivative
instruments) are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models (e.g.
discounted cash flows analysis using observable

and/or unobservable inputs).

The carrying amount of other financial assets and

liabilities carried at amortised cost, approximate their

respective fair values due to the relatively short-term

nature of these financial statements.

5. &M IR -i#
(b) MERREEZERRBR &

AT EEE
MEEERMBE N AT ERYN
THREE:

(i)

(i)

B s AR 2R AR R R AR A I AV BB
mEEENYBEERUKE
BNAFEDD RS ETR S
BEEEEE-

HteM B EERMBEE (T
BETETIR) Z2DAFERZLD
wEBRRX (flumfER Tz
R/ETTBEBEZRRR
EREDH) MEE -

HttBEEREBENREERE
HEAE BEARZEMBRE
BREYEY MHEKROEREAFE

HE

o
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5.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued
Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position
The Group's financial instruments that are measured
subsequent to initial recognition at fair value are
grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to

which the fair value is observable.

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets

for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived
from inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly

(i.e. derived from prices); and

Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived
from valuation techniques that include inputs
for the asset or liability that are not based on

observable market data (unobservable inputs).

During the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018,
there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfer into or

out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial

liabilities.

WANIJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management
is to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value. The
Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments
to it, in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made
in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital

during the reporting period.

The Group monitors capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group
overall strategy remains unchanged during the reporting

period.

BxERER
FEEEREANERERRREAE
BUSEEEZENE D URESRERE
MERLR UXEHEBBERK SRR
ESBABE FAEESHRSERRE
LERERRBAHHFEHARE DGR
FHBERREE FAEELSREXMGTF
BRROBRERE REERNTRRKET
HRMD -RBEHE FEEEELNE
B BRYABEIEEMET-

FEEEZREDN URRASENSERE
RAZRBEEELE ARNEBELER
BRANTE AFEHATRERER-
REEHE AEENEERBILES
o
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued 6. BXBRMBEEE-&
The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, other AEENERERBEEER HMtEE
borrowing, cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable RekReEEBEEURETQFEER A
to owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital BitER (BREERTRARRGEE)
and reserves.
2019 2018
—B—-NF —E-NF
HK$000 HK$’000
THET THET
Debts (Note (a)) &% (MfaE@) 60,000 100,000
Cash and cash equivalents HehBEEeEEER (28,816) (91,922)
Net debt/(cash) &%,/ (R&)FHE 31,184 8,078
Equity (Note (b)) = (MizEb)) 84,948 159,275
Gearing ratio EESEBLLE 0.37 0.05

Notes:

(@)  Debts represented by other borrowing as set out in Notes 30.

(b)  Equity includes all capital and reserves attributable to owners

of the Company.

WANIJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 ZE=—B— hE=A=+—HLLEE

OPERATING SEGMENT

Information reported internally to the chief operating
decision maker for the purpose of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on types of
goods or services delivered or provided. The Group organised
into three operating divisions: (a) pharmaceutical wholesale
and distribution business, and (b) hemodialysis treatment
and consultancy service business in the PRC. These divisions
are the basis on which the Group reports its segment
information.

The pharmaceutical retail chain business was discontinued
during the year ended 31 March 2019 upon completion of
disposal of Fujian Huihao Sihai which are described in more
detail in Note 26. The segment information report below
does not included any amounts from the discontinued
operation.

Segment revenue and results
For the year ended 31 March 2019
Continuing operations:

BEERW
BEBREBEBREENDZRUEERD
ERFAZDBRAZER DEERHAR
NHEHRzERPREEE - A EEAS
5’3_’:_1lﬂié%ﬁ B AR Bl (a) % am ik 3%

70 85 2 75 I (b) M BB AT R B K 7 38 IR
i%%i% REDNENAEBE2BRESBRE
B2 B o

RBEZE-Z-AF=ZA=+t-HLEE
N ERTEEHEXBENTREERRE
B EERALL AR E26RZM T
NHAHEIBERNBRELABECRLE
EEB2EMERE-

FHW =R RR
BE_ZT-AF=AZ=+—HLEE
HREERY:

Hemodialysis
Pharmaceutical treatment and
wholesale and consultancy
distribution service
business business Eliminations Consolidated
EaHER [ 7% 5% 7 ia
PHEE &"'E‘Sﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁ Ha ]
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TET FTHET FTET FiET
Revenue &
External sales HIMEE 82,154 14,326 - 96,480
Inter-segment sales PEEHE - - - -
Total revenue Bls 82,154 14,326 - 96,480
Inter-segment sales are charged PERHENRAT
at arm’s length EERE
Results iR
Segment results PREE (1,988) (37,813) - (39,801)
Unallocated corporate income and AABZEERARZH
expenses, net B (3,587)
Loss from operations REHE (43,388)
Finance costs B & A (12,839)
Loss before taxation RE AR (56,227)
Taxation ] (1,946)
Loss for the year KEEHE (58,173)
BEESEERARLTR
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BEESH-®
SHBBRRE &

7. OPERATING SEGMENT - continued 7.

Segment revenue and results - continued

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Continuing operations:

BE-Z—N\F=A=+t—HLFE

Hemodialysis
Pharmaceutical treatment and
wholesale and consultancy
distribution service
business business Eliminations Consolidated
ERHER MRENER
DEEK BHAREEL H 8 28
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEx TET TET TEx
(Restated)
(&%)
Revenue &
External sales HIMEE 318,809 34,205 - 353,014
Inter-segment sales PEEHE 3,947 112 (4,059) -
Total revenue B3 322,756 34,317 (4,059) 353,014
Inter-segment sales are charged PEEHEDRAT
at arm’s length HEWE
Results B8
Segment results PEEE (4,864) 12,455 = 7,591
Unallocated corporate income and AABZEERARTE
expenses, net FH (6,988)
Profit from operations R ER 603
Finance costs &R (14,696)
Loss before taxation R RIS (14,093)
Taxation BB (4,856)
Loss for the year KEERHE (18,949)

WANIJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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OPERATING SEGMENT - continued

Segment assets and liabilities

As at 31 March 2019

7. BESNE-&
PEEERAE
R-E—h&E=A=+—H

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE=—F—NE=A=+—HILFE

Pharmaceutical
Wholesale and

Hemodialysis
treatment and
consultancy

distribution service
business business Consolidated
I 7% 5&
ESHER BRREHN
DHEE REER He
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET FET
Consolidated statement of HFAMBERAER
financial position
Assets BE
Segment assets PEERE 81,808 47,679 129,487
Goodwill 5k - 95,208 95,208
Unallocated corporate assets KO BZBEEE 1,894
Consolidated total assets rEEEHAE 226,589
Liabilities =R
Segment liabilities DEAE 19,155 7,338 26,493
Other borrowing H {5 E 60,000
Amount due to a shareholder  FE{+— B RREFKIE 2,000
Unallocated corporate liabilities k2 Bzt % & & 3,001
Consolidated total liabilities LEeEBEEE 91,494

EREEZERERAR 161
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7.
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OPERATING SEGMENT - continued

Segment assets and liabilities - continued

As at 31 March 2018

7. BESNE-&
PEEERAE &
R-B-N&E=g=+—0

Pharmaceutical Hemodialysis
Pharmaceutical retail chain treatment and
wholesale and business consultancy
distribution (Discontinued service
business operation) business Consolidated
EmTE MR B
ERHBER BHER RRREHA
PHEH (ERLREERK) PR 5% RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEx TET TET FiEx
Consolidated statement of FEMEBRRE
financial position
Assets BE
Segment assets 2HERE 119,429 134,871 65,646 319,946
Goodwill BE - - 136,623 136,623
Unallocated corporate assets AAMZLEEE 239
Consolidated total assets REEERE 456,808
Liabilities AR
Segment liabilities PEEE 30,156 86,747 20,982 137,885
Other borrowing Hitfe g 100,000
Amount due to a director E—EESHE 2,000
Unallocated corporate liabilities AAMz LR 2,507
Consolidated total liabilities REERAE 242,392

WANIJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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OPERATING SEGMENT - continued 7. EESNW-&
Other segment information Htt 3 WEH
For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE_T—hAhF=A=+—HLEE
Continuing operations: FIEEERY:
Hemodialysis
Pharmaceutical treatment and
wholesale and consultancy
distribution service
business business Unallocated Consolidated
EaRER & &
PHEE RBEORBER RAE #e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$'000
TET FTET TET THET
Other information Htt g8
Capital expenditure (Note) EREE (M) 235 30,241 - 30,476
Depreciation neE 1,543 3,430 4 4,977
Loss on disposal of property, HENE BER
plant and equipment FEZER 646 - - 646
Impairment loss on goodwill HMEZRESE - 35,459 - 35,459
Reversal of impairment loss recognised 712 5 BKFBRR 2
in respect of trade receivables REBERR (2,391) (3,603) - (5,994)
Impairment loss recognised in respect i E AL B IBERR 2
of other receivables HEESE 1,206 - - 1,206
Note: B &E

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and

EAMAXBERFAHYE BERKREZH
ENBURBHEARMEZEE

equipment and assets acquired from acquisition of subsidiaries
during the year.

EREEZERERAR
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OPERATING SEGMENT - continued
Other segment information - continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

Continuing operations:

EENWM-—1&
HthoyMEIE &
BE-Z—N\F=A=+t—HLFE

FEEEEYR:

Hemodialysis
Pharmaceutical treatment and
wholesale and consultancy
distribution service
business business Unallocated Consolidated
EEHER MR EN G E
vk RABH R ER AR &a
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEx TERT TET TiEx
(Restated)
(&%)
Other information HitEH
Capital expenditure (Note) EREX (M) 12 2,390 2 2,404
Depreciation nE 1,205 3,104 7 4,316
Loss on disposal of property, HENR BER
plant and equipment FEZEHER 72 - - 72
Impairment loss recognised in respect & 5 KB
of trade receivables BRZREESRE 524 201 = 725
Reversal of impairment loss recognised 8 5 EMFIERR Z
in respect of HEBBREE
trade receivables (268) - - (268)
Note: B &

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and
equipment during the years.

WANIJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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OPERATING SEGMENT - continued

Other segment information - continued

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in Note
3. Segment results represent the profit or loss generated by
each segment without allocation of finance costs, loss on
disposal of a subsidiary and taxation. Unallocated corporate
expenses mainly include directors’ remuneration and other
central administration costs. This is the measure reported
to the chief operating decision maker for the purpose of

resource allocation and assessment of segment performance.

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and

allocating resources between segments:

o all assets are allocated to reportable segments other
than unallocated corporate assets. Unallocated
corporate assets mainly include office equipment of the
central administration companies. Goodwill is allocated

to reportable segments as described in Note 21.

o all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments
other than other borrowing, amount due to a director,
amount due to a shareholder and certain other

payables of certain administrative.

EESB-®
Htt S HEH -

AHRED E B BREM Iz A
SEETHR R D EXEREEIEE
E2ENREE THARYBER -HE
—ENBLRAZERERREAZDE - R
BEtXAXTEaRESMEREtH
REFBEM - WUIRERTBER D ERR
FEAETREEBRRERE 2TE-

REZSBERRRSWS EHERME :

s BRAIBZLREEIN FMBEEE
HoBEAHREI B - KB 2h
REEXTZEURPREEQLT2M
DERME o NP RE2 1 o - BB Ty

BETHREDE

s KRHEMEE BN -—REFHE-E
F—BRERRERE THMEMNE
TEEQARAREN FEEEID

BEETHREDE-
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OPERATING SEGMENT - continued

Geographical information

The Group operates in two principal areas — pharmaceutical
wholesale and distribution business, and hemodialysis
treatment and consultancy service business in the PRC and

administrative activity operates in Hong Kong.

The Group’s revenue is solely generated from external

customers in the PRC.

The following is an analysis of the carryings amount of non-
current assets analysed by the geographical area in which

the assets are located:

BEESE-®&

i EH
AEENTEEEEHCE - EHEEE
BRI B R D HEYRMRBETEER
RARBEBRESBEEEREY-

AEBEZWHEZIRERPEAINMPES

UTAREEMEBEI M ZERDE
EZIREE D :

Carrying amounts of

non-current assets

FRBEEZIREE
2019 2018
—E-hFE —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET
Hong Kong b 4 9
PRC H 128,076 183,905
128,080 183,914

WANIJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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OPERATING SEGMENT - continued
Information about major customers
Revenue from customers over 10% of the Group’'s total

revenue from the continuing operations are as follows:

BEESE-®&
AMEEERZAH
EAREESESEEHRRERIBI0%
ZEFBEMT :

2019 2018
—EB-hF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$’000
FTHET TET
(Restated)

(R=E5)

FEEA (M)
EFB (M)

Customer A (Note)
Customer B (Note)

Note:

No information on revenue is disclosed for the customers as their
contributed less than 10% to the Group’s total revenue of the

continuing operations for the year ended 31 March 2018.

Revenue from major products
The Group's revenue from its major products were stated in

Note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

28,018 N/ATIE F
19,096 N/AT7E A

B &

BE-Z-N\E=ZA=1+—HLEE BARE
BAORAEEFELCLEIEBNEE10% » B
EBRZEEFHEERAREER -

FEERZES
AEFBFTEERZRBHRGS BB &K
FMIFES o
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8. REVENUE 8. &
An analysis of the Group's revenue for the year from FRAEEFELSEXET 2R DU
continuing operations is as follows: T
2019 2018
ZB-hE | ZE2-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FiET
(Restated)
(&==E5)
Continuing operations: HIEEERY:
Revenue from contract with customers ¥ —F B2
recognised at a point in time EREHKS
Wholesale and distribution of EZoREBRERMEBERDHE
pharmaceutical and related products 82,154 318,809
Provision of hemodialysis treatment and 12 M M0 R B AT R R I A o AR 7
consultancy services 14,326 34,205
96,480 353,014
All revenue contracts are for one year or less. As permitted FBERREHNHRTA—FHUT - ME
by practical expedient under HKFRS 15, the transaction price B RS ERF 1SN ERERE TR
allocated to unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed. o WEEESRERBTEANRZE
i
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE=—F—NE=A=+—HILFE

9. OTHER REVENUE 9. Hfalx=
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET
(Restated)
(#RE7)
Continuing operations: FIEEERY:
Interest income FE WA 136 236
Government grants BT 48 B 374 -
Sundry income B A 97 364
607 600
10. OTHER GAIN AND LOSS, NET 10. Hfhlir 2 R &5 1R > B
2019 2018
—B—-hF —E-N\F
HK$000 HK$’000
FET THET
(Restated)
(&2E5)
Continuing operations: HRBERY:

Reversal of impairment loss of B 5 EWEIE 2R EE B
trade receivables - 268

Loss on disposal of property, HEVE RERZHEZEE
plant and equipment (646) (72)
(646) 196

EREEZERERAR
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE=—E—hE=A=+—HILEE

M. ESEBE(BE) &
AEESSEBSER (BR) RN
B (3 A) THEEZEH:

11. (LOSS)/PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS

The Group's (loss)/profit for the year from operations is

arrived at after charging/(crediting):

2019 2018
ZB-hE | ZE2-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET THET
(Restated)
(&==E5)
Continuing operations: HIEEERY:
Staff costs: BEIER:
Employee benefits expense (including BEEABX
directors’ emoluments (Note 13)): (BEESME (MFE13)) :
Salaries and allowances e RIERE 11,098 16,870
Retirement scheme contributions RKEsHEIHER 878 927
Share-base payment (Note 38) LIRSt B E B 2 S 7 (KMFEE38) 3,944 =
15,920 17,797
Other items: HMIFA :
Depreciation of property, ME BRERZEBITE
plant and equipment 4,977 4,316
Auditors’ remuneration ZEE B &
— audit services — B 1,088 987
- non-audit services —EBEZRE 130 =
Cost of inventories sold EEFEHAE 80,448 313,825
Impairment loss on goodwill BmEZREEE 35,459 336
Net (reversal)/provision impairment loss in ~ EZ ZEWFIE R HEWRFE =
respect of trade receivables and WEEE (BE) BEFHE
other receivables (4,788) 457
Operating lease rentals in respect of FRELtHREFREHERS
land and building 2,433 4,085
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE=—F—NE=A=+—HILFE

12. FINANCE COSTS 12. BB EH
2019 2018
—E—hE —E-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FE T
(Restated)
(ZE7H)
Continuing operations: FIEEERY:
Interest on: DTERZHE
— Bank borrowings —RITEE - 1,595
— Other borrowing —Hihg & 12,839 8,200
— Convertible notes — AR EE - 4,901
12,839 14,696
13. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 13. EFHM

Pursuant to the Listing Rules and the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance, the aggregate amounts of emoluments paid by

the companies now comprising the Group to the directors of

the Company during the reporting period are as follows:

R LR R EE QRS BAKS
SEZZERARBREREXIMATEAL

AESCHMAENT

2019 2018

—ZE-hEF —E-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Fees we 360 360
Other emoluments Hi il &

Salaries, allowance and benefits in kind e EMREBEYRZ 741 1,155

Retirement scheme contributions ERETEIHER 24 36

Share-based payments DA A0 B ER 2 I 1,809 -

Total et 2,934 1,551
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE=—E—hE=A=+—HILEE

13. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS - continued 13. EEHM —&

Details for the emoluments of each director of the Company

ARABABEERBENB z2HMFB W

during the reporting period are as follows: T s
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits scheme  Share-based
Fees in kind  contributions payment Total
e BUR DRpheEn
e EWfE BHRHBHER ZH® @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$'000
THT TET TET TET TET
For the year ended 31 March 2019 BEZZS-1E
ZA=t-HLEEE
Executive directors: HTEE:
Mr. Chen Jinshan R EE - 225 4 864 1,093
Ms. Yung Ka Lai (Note (a)) BEELT (KEQ) - 150 8 - 158
Mr. Wang Jia Jun (Note (g)) Wang Jia Junt 4
(M) - 366 12 864 1,242
Independent non-executive directors: BUKHATEE:
Mr. Wong Hon Kit HEREE 120 - - 27 147
Dr. Liu Yongping RS ki 120 - - 27 147
Mr. Ho Man (Note (d)) 8% (M) 120 - - 27 147
360 41 24 1,809 2,934
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits scheme
Fees in kind contributions Total
e 2R
we ENFE RIRG IR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TER TET TET
For the year ended 31 March 2018 ~ BZE=Z—-N\%
ZA=t-HLEFE
Executive directors: HITEE:
Mr. Chen Jinshan (AN - 60 - 60
Ms. Yung Ka Lai (Note (a)) SERELL (FiFk@) - 360 18 378
Mr. Chiu King Yan (Note (b)) BRI % E (HFED) - 735 18 753
Independent non-executive directors:  BUFHTEE:
Mr. Wong Hon Kit BEALE 120 - - 120
Dr. Liu Yongping R 120 - - 120
Mr. Fok Wai Ming Eddie (Note (c)) EEPRE (K@) 105 - - 105
Mr. Ho Man (Note (d)) I8 (KaE(d)) 15 - - 15
360 1,155 36 1,551
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE=—F—NE=A=+—HILFE

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS - continued

Details for the emoluments of each director of the Company
during the reporting period are as follows: — continued

Notes:

(@) Ms. Yung Ka Lai was appointed as executive director on 5
August 2015 and resigned on 31 August 2018.

(b)  Mr. Chiu King Yan was appointed as executive director on 6
March 2017 and resigned on 14 February 2018.

(c)  Mr. Fok Wai Ming Eddie was appointed as independent non—
executive director on 24 March 2017 and resigned on 14
February 2018.

(d) Mr. Ho Man was appointed as independent non- executive
director on 14 February 2018.

(e)  Mr. Wang Jia Jun was appointed as executive director on 31
August 2018.

During the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018, none of
the directors and chief executive officer of the Company
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments.

During the year, no emoluments have been paid to the
directors and chief executive officer of the Company as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation.

13. EEHFM &
ADARCEENRES DB H B M
T: —4&

(@) FEBXLIR-"ZFE—HFNAEHE
EEAHTEE AR=_B—-N\ENA
=+—H##fE-

(b) HWMLCEER=-ZZ—tE=HA~BE
EEBHTES - IR=_ZF—-N\E=A
+ M B BHE -

(0 EEARER-Z-—LtF=A-1+MHN
REZERBIUFMNTES AR=-F
—NE-AtHA®RE-

d) AHEER=ZZF-NF-_A+HBEEZ
ERBIFHNTES

(&) Wang Jia JunEER=—Z—-N\FENA
=St+—HEZEABTES-

BHE 2 NER-ZF-N\E=A=1+-—
BLEFE SIBRAQAREEREFETHA
ERERBDERZETAHE

FRAQFAAEENEERERITHAE
XASHFH - MER R B EAREH AN
BERNER ERHE-
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE=—E—hE=A=+—HILEE

14. EMPLOYEES EMOLUMENTS

14. EEEH &

Senior management emoluments and five highest
paid employees

The five highest paid individuals during the year included
two directors (2018: two) and the details of whose
remuneration are set out in Note 13 above. The details of
the emoluments of the remaining three (2018: three) highest
paid individuals who are neither director nor chief executive

officer of the Company are as follows:

ERETEARHERIBESHESR

FREERSFEEGEME (ZZT—N
F WMB)ES HMeHBEANLX
MEI13 B T=R(=FE—-N\F:=RK)
BEe¥HES (HEWFAQARESFEE
ETBRAB) 2HMESHBOT:

2019 2018

—E—-hF —E-N\#F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHET T8t

Salaries and other emoluments FekEMME 1,343 1,830
Retirement scheme contributions BREAGTEHX 30 69
Share-based payments AR A7 2 B 2 4K 259 =
1,632 1,899

The number of these non-directors, highest paid employees
whose remuneration fell within the following band is as

follows:

ZEFES BREFEENFMHNFUT

gE -

2019 2018

—E—hE | ZEB-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FHE T

Nil to HK$1,000,000 0Z 1,000,000 JT 3 3
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el

EMPLOYEES EMOLUMENTS - continued 14.

Senior management emoluments and five highest

paid employees - continued

The emoluments of the senior management (excluding

ERE& &

ERETEARHGRIBESHESR

ARAREREERE (TEEES) NHN

directors) of the Company are within the following band. NFUTEE-
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET
Nil to HK$1,000,000 0%1,000,0007& 7T 1 1

During the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to senior management
or any of the five highest paid employees as an inducement

to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for

BE_Z-NGER-Z-—N\FE=ZR=+—
ALEE AEETROSREEENRE
AAERSHEEXFEHM  UIERKSI
MEAREBESRAMBEMNER  RIEHBH

loss of office. B A {8 o
TAXATION 15. RIA
2019 2018
—E—hEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#xT TET
Current tax: BUHAFG 18
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax — B EFRBH 1,946 4,936
Deferred tax: RS IE
— Current year credit (Note 32) - REEER (ME32) - (80)
1,946 4,856

EREEZERERAR 175
2018/2019 R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
55 A 0 % e 2R M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE=—E—hE=A=+—HILEE

15.

176

TAXATION - continued
The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on
profits arising or derived from the jurisdictions in which

members of the Group are domiciled and operate.

Provision on profits assessable elsewhere has been calculated
at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries in which the
Group operates, based on existing legislation, interpretations

and practices in respect thereof.

The National People’s Congress which was concluded on
16 March 2007, the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law was
approved and became effective from 1 January 2008. The
PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law introduces a wide range
of changes which include, but are not limited to, the
unification of the income tax rates for domestic-invested and

foreign-invested enterprises at 25%.

According to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, starting
from 1 January 2008, 10% withholding income tax will
be imposed on dividend relating to profits earned by the
companies established in the PRC in the calendar year
2008 onward to their foreign shareholders. For investors
incorporated in Hong Kong which hold at least 25% of
equity interest of those PRC companies, a preferential rate of
5% will be applied. The Group has applied the preferential
rate of 5% as the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are directly
held by an investment holding company incorporated in
Hong Kong. No deferred tax has been provided for in respect
of the temporary differences attributable to such profits as
the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary

differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

WANIJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE=—F—NE=A=+—HILFE

TAXATION - continued

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017
(the "Bill") which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rate
regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and
was gazette on the following day. Under the two-tiered
profits tax rate regime, the first HK$2,000,000 of profits
of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25% and
profits tax above HK$2,000,000 will be taxed at 16.5%.
The profits of group entities not qualifying for the two-
tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at
a flat rate of 16.5%. The directors considered the amount
involved upon implementation of the two-tiered profits tax
rate as insignificant to the consolidation financial statement.
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% for both years.
No provision for Hong Kong Profits tax has been made for
both years since there were no assessable profit generated in

Hong Kong.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and the British Virgin Islands, the Group is not subject to
any income tax in the Cayman Islands and the British Virgin

Islands.

15. RIE— &

R=Z-—NF=B=+—-H BFBALE
BiEB QO17EBH (BFT) (B7H) &
PIER) (MERBIEZR]) I ARBHE
ERMBRH - MEHAERR_ZF—-NF=A
“THTNBRBEERAEE LRXB T
B RBFSHREMASG SEREER
B E2,000,00058 TR A 128.25%
B > B 82,000,00058 7t #9 % 7 Bl A
R165% BB -FTHEFNEBHBERMR
FINEEERNEANBEEREER X
16.5%HB - EBRE  FIBBBERMAR
FEREMSIRSBEEREVBRERR
WARBEKR - BEBFSHMEBIZ16.5%5T
E-WEFMEFEREBRNESBMELE
B REAYTEREBELEEER R
o

REFEHERABELHEEZRARK
ER O AEEBAHNEARSEERR
BRELESHEH -
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE=—E—hE=A=+—HILEE

15. TAXATION - continued
A reconciliation of the income tax expense applicable to loss
before taxation using the statutory rate for the location in
which the Company and its subsidiaries are domiciled to the

tax expenses at the effective tax rate are as follows:

15. IRIA— &
ERALNEREKE DT AR %
ER R EEARBBAE R AR
B EREER RS HER Y
BT

2019 2018
—B—-NF —E-N\F
HK$000 HK$’000
FTHET THET
Loss before taxation FREL A& 18
- continued operation —FESEER (56,227) (14,093)
— discontinued operation —BRIEREEK (7.570) (36,478)
(63,797) (50,571)
Notional tax on profit before tax, calculated ZRBEHBH LEEEH 2
at the rates applicable to profits in the tax s A #9358 A #{ = 5T B BR B A
jurisdiction concerned =AY B =R IE (8,615) (5,268)
Tax effect of expenses and income not TE Bk B AR
deductible or taxable for tax purposes X RBANBESE 3,761 138
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised REANBEBBENHEZE 6,800 9,986
Taxation B8 1,946 4,856
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE=—F—NE=A=+—HILFE

DIVIDENDS

The directors of the Company do not recommend the
payment of any dividend for the year ended 31 March 2019
(2018: Nil).

LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO

OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

(a) Basic loss per share
Continuing and discontinued operations
The computation of the basic loss per share amount
from continuing and discontinued operations are
based on the loss for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the Company from continuing and
discontinued operations of HK$66,592,000 (2018:
HK$55,586,000) and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 709,159,960 (2018: 648,405,300)
during the year.

Continuing operations

The computation of the basic loss per share amount
from continuing operations are based on the loss
for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the Company from continuing operations of
HK$59,046,000 (2018: HK$19,181,000) and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of
709,159,960 (2018: 648,405,300) during the year.

Discontinued operation

The computation of the basic loss per share amount
from discontinued operation are based on loss for
the period attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the Company from discontinued operations of
HK$7,546,000 (2018: HK$36,405,000) and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of
709,159,960 (2018: 648,405,300) during the year.

16. R 2
AAREETEEERAE-S—NE=
B=1T—HLEFENEMRE (=ZZ—N
FiMm) o

17. R LFHAABESREBR

(a) BEREFER

FREEEBROCKRILEERS
FR BECEERRERLEE
EB2BRERBEDRELRR
AEEERREEARERELSE
EBRECRLIEREERCTFES
866,592,000 5t (=& — /\F:
55,586,000/ JT) & N ¥ 19 & B
BB E 709,159,960 (=& — N
F 1 648,405,3008% ) st & ©

BREEXE

FR BECEEBZERELRE
BeEDNDREBEARAQAAEBERZE
EAEEBECEERZTFER
859,046,000 T (= F — N\ F:
19,181,000/ t) R miEF & B
IREE 709,159,960 (=& — N\
F : 648,405,3008% ) st & ©

CRILEEERE

FR EBRLILCEEBR2ERER
EBERESEDRERQAGDEERRS
EAELHAEBRELEEK
E5187,546,0008 T (= ZE— \F:
36,405,000 T) R NEFHE B
BB E709,159,9608 (=& — N
F 1 648,405,3008% ) 5t & ©
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE=—E—hE=A=+—HILEE

17. LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY - continued
(b) Diluted loss per share

Continuing and discontinued operations

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the computation
of diluted loss per share from continuing and
discontinued operations does not include the
Company’s outstanding share options because the
effect were anti-dilutive. Therefore, the diluted loss per
share from continuing and discontinued operations of

the Company is the same as the basic loss per share.

For the year ended 31 March 2018, diluted loss per
share from continuing and discontinued operations is
the same as the basic loss per share from continuing
and discontinued operations as there was no potential

diluted event.

Continuing operations

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the computation of
diluted loss per share from continuing operations does
not include the Company’s outstanding share options
because the effect were anti-dilutive. Therefore, the
diluted loss per share from continuing operations of

the Company is the same as the basic loss per share.

For the year ended 31 March 2018, diluted loss per
share from continuing operations is the same as the
basic loss per share from continuing operations as

there was no potential diluted event.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE=—F—NE=A=+—HILFE

17. LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY - continued

(b) Diluted loss per share - continued

Discontinued operation

From 1 April 2018 to 15 November 2018 (completion
date), the computation of diluted loss per share
from discontinued operation does not included the
Company’s outstanding share options because the
effect were anti-dilutive. Therefore, the diluted loss per
share from discontinued operation of the Company is

the same as the basic loss per share.

For the year ended 31 March 2018, diluted loss per
share from discontinued operation is the same as the
basic loss per share from discontinued operation as

there was no potential diluted event.

17. X 0P HEBEAREERER
-8
(b) SEREEHEE-—&

CERILEEXR
REZB-NFHA-HEZZ-N
F+—-—A+HB (HAH) ER
EREER 2 SRBEBRZTE
HEAERBEZEMILESALRR
AEARTEZBRE Bt A2 F
CRIEEEXB - BREBEEREA
BREAXBEMER -

BZz-_2-N\F=ZA=1+—HIL#E
B BARYEBEEHEEH 241
REXBoBRBEHB/ED AL
REXBK e BREXREIEHER -
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE=—E—hE=A=+—HILEE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

1. ME BEREHE

Leasehold Office Medicine Motor Construction
improvement equipment equipment vehicle in progress Total
HENERE WOZRE BREH RE ERIE #i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THR THT TR TiEn TR
Cost AR
As at 31 March 2017 W=Z-tE=H=1-A 14,001 23,674 10,983 3,899 - 52,557
Additions RE 1,499 2,037 108 - 2,188 5,832
Disposals HE - (1,440) - (523) - (1,963)
Exchange realignment ERHZE 1,659 2,846 1,168 432 126 6,231
As at 31 March 2018 and 1 April 2018  R=E—-\%F
ZB=+-H
RZE-N\E
mA-A 17,159 27,117 12,259 3,808 2314 62,657
Additions RE 1,980 2,775 - - 3,790 8,545
Disposals HE (535) (3,321) (1,310) (1,325) - (6,491)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 25)  IREBHIB A A (fH&F25) 9,962 2,738 8,737 113 381 21,931
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 26) HE-BMEA A (HiE26) (14,938) (15,525) - (555) - (31,018)
Exchange realignment EHAE (1,068) (1,686) (3,548) (237) (143) (6,682)
As at 31 March 2019 RZZE-NE
=A=1t-H 12,560 12,098 16,138 1,804 6,342 48,942
Accumulated depreciation REHE
As at 1 April 2017 R=Z2-+&£mA-A 8,129 14,916 119 2,075 - 25,239
Charge of the year ERT M 2,459 3,192 3,010 340 - 9,001
Written back on disposals RIEERER - (1,211) - (456) = (1,667)
Exchange realignment ERAE 1,094 1,999 186 261 - 3,540
As at 31 March 2018 and 1 April 2018 R=B-N\F
=A=t+-H
R=B-N\%
mA-A 11,682 18,896 3315 2,220 - 36,113
Charge of the year ERE M 1,544 1,978 3,164 125 - 6,811
Written back on disposals REERER (535) (2,905) (485) (844) - (4,769)
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 26) HE-HRBA R (HiFe) (10,822) (8,931) = (85) = (19,838)
Exchange realignment EiAE (724) (1,177) (206) (140) - (2,247)
As at 31 March 2019 RZZ-NE
=A=t-H 1,145 7,861 5,788 1,276 = 16,070
Net book value RESE
As at 31 March 2019 RZB-NE
ZB=+-H 11,415 4,237 10,350 528 6,342 32,872
As at 31 March 2018 RZB-NE
=A=t-H 5,477 8,221 8,944 1,588 2314 26,544
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE=—F—NE=A=+—HILFE

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 19. AFHEBERRA
Total
et
HK$'000
FET
Cost 5% 3
As at 1 April 2017 R-ZE—tFMA—H 13,622
Exchange realignment [ 5 S & 1,441
As at 31 March 2018 and 1 April 2018 RZE-—NEFE=A=+—HEK
—E2-N\FEMA—H 15,063
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 26) HE— BB AR (MzE26) (13,625)
Exchange realignment ERAR (1,438)
As at 31 March 2019 R-ZE-—NF=A=+—H -
Accumulated depreciation Rt s
As at 1 April 2017 R=ZZE—+tFMA—H 2,980
Charge for the year FREHNR 383
Exchange realignment fE 5 A& 359
As at 31 March 2018 and 1 April 2018 R=ZB-NEF=ZA=+—HE
—E-N\FMA—H 3,722
Charge for the year FRE MR 380
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 26) HE— KB T (MzE26) (3,713)
Exchange realignment R (389)
As at 31 March 2019 RZZE-—NF=A=+—H -
Net book value RSB E
As at 31 March 2019 BR-Z—h&E=R=+—H -
As at 31 March 2018

R-ZE—NE=H=+—H 11,341

EREEZERERAR 183
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19.

184

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS - continued

19. RFEKRTA -\

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FExT
Analysed for reporting purpose as: BHEL|AE -
— Current portion — RENED 1D - 383
— Non-current portion — 3E R B R 40 - 10,958
- 11,341

The Group's prepaid lease payments amounts represent
the payments for land use rights situated in the PRC. The
leasehold lands have lease term of 35 to 40 years and the
Group has processed the land use rights of the leasehold

land during the lease term.

Amortisation on prepaid lease payments of approximately
HK$380,000 (2018: approximately HK$383,000) have been
charged to the administrative expenses in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
for the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018.

WANIJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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INVESTMENT PROPERTY 20. REYME
2019 2018
—E—hEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$’000
THET FET
Completed investment property BERTIREYHE 9,789 9,789

At fair value BOFE

As at 1 April REOB—H 9,789 6,766
Fair value change ANFEZE - 2,182
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 26) HE—BEH B AR (MzE26) (8,854) =
Exchange realignment [EHAE (935) 841
As at 31 March R=A=+-—H - 9,789

(a)

Valuation of investment property

Investment property as at 31 March 2018 was stated at
RMB7,850,000 (approximately HK$9,789,000). The fair
value were arrived at based on the valuations carried
out by an independent firm of qualified professional
valuers, Asset Appraisals Limited, (“AAL"), who have
among their staff members of the Hong Kong Institute
of Surveyors with recent experience in the location and
category of the properties being values. The valuations
conform to the Valuation Standards published by the
Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors. The completed
investment property has been valued using the direct

comparison approach.

(a) BBEMRZMHE

RZZE-NF=A=+—-—H2Z®&
EY R AR ¥7,850,0007T (4
9,789,000/ 7T ) 5l Bk o A FEJI 1R
BHBEYSEREXMGEMPHRE
EEFEBEBBERALE (TAALD)
FrEEmMEE - ETR M EEHN
AALBEREBAEMBEESEE I
HETHENEZVERERNES
EHEELSR - FREMEREES
REMBEHR2GEERN -B%
IREVEFREELBAETH
=

EREEZERERAR
2018/2019 E%ﬁ 185
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20. INVESTMENT PROPERTY - continued

186

(@) Valuation of investment property

- continued

Direct comparison approach is adopted where
comparison based on recent sales price of comparable
properties on a price per square foot using market
data which is publicly available without significant
adjustments being made to the market observable
data of comparable properties is made. A significant
increase in the sales price of comparable properties

would result in significant increase in fair value, and

vice versa.

At each of reporting year end date, the management
will (i) verify all major inputs to the independent
valuation report; (ii) assess property valuations
movement when compared to the prior year valuation

report; and (iii) hold discussion with the independent

valuers.

There had been no change from the valuation
technique used in the prior year. In estimating the fair

value of the property, the highest and best use of the

property is their current use.

WANIJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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(a)
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RAEELEE AERBAUELR
MEERRIRIB 2T ERERSE
FRREREEFE ZIMREER
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B RRZTRe
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE=—F—NE=A=+—HILFE

20. INVESTMENT PROPERTY - continued 20. BEYMR-&
(b) The analysis of the carrying amount of (b) MEYRZEEESIANT -
investment property is as follow:
2019 2018
—ZE—hF —E-N\#F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Land located in the PRC: RAEZ i
Medium-term lease FREFFE A - 9,789
(c) Details of the Group's investment property () RIB—N\F - FKREREYE
and information about the fair value BRAFEBREHEFSENT:

hierarchy as at 2018 was as follows:

Fair value as at

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 31 March 2018
R-Z-N\#F
ZRA=t-HZ
148 2% 3% ATE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TER TET TiEx
Investment property unit fRAREZ
located in the PRC RENEEN - 9,789 - 9,789

EREEZERERAR
2018/2019 E%ﬁ 187
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20. INVESTMENT PROPERTY - continued

188

(c)

(d)

Details of the Group’s investment property
and information about the fair value
hierarchy as at 31 March 2018 was as
follows: - continued

There were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfer into or
out of level 3 during the year ended 31 March 2018.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers between
levels of fair value hierarchy at the end of the date of
the events or change in circumstances that caused the

transfer.

Investment property leased out under
operating leases

All of the Group’s property interests held under
operating lease to earn rentals are measured using
the fair value model and classified accounted for

investment property.

The Group leases out its investment property which are
shop units of a 9-storey composite building to various
tenants. The leases typically run for an initial period
of 1 year to 5 years, at the end of which period all
terms are renegotiated. None of the leases includes
contingent rentals. No rental income for investment
property less directly outgoings during the year ended
31 March 2019 (2018: approximately HK$177,000).

WANIJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019

20 REME &
(0 W-—B—N\E=B=+—-8'%
EEEEMERLTFERREH
HWEmT: —&

(d)
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B 1 RE2F 2ENAFEFEL
EEEAINETMEAREL-

AEEZHRABIANEHER 2
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NP EBREESR-
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE=—F—NE=A=+—HILFE

20. INVESTMENT PROPERTY - continued

(d)

(e)

Investment property leased out under
operating leases - continued

Investment property leased at 31 March 2018 had
committed tenants for 3 years. At the end of the
reporting period, the Group contracted with tenants

for the following future minimum lease receivables:

20. REME-—E
(d) REESHEHBEZREINE
— &

BE-_ZT-N\F=A=+—-8'#H
EREMFE-HFREEARFHA
ZHE - RAHERR  AEECRE
Fi#  RAREWER z&ERE

M
2019 2018
—B—nE | —T-NE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TH&T TET
Within one year —FR - 177
In the second to the fifth years E_ZhF (BEEEWSE)
inclusive - 354
- 531

Particulars of investment property

The particulars of the investment property at 31 March

(e) BMEMEZHE
RZE-NF=ZA=+—H KE

2018 was as follows: EZFHBOT :
Interest

attributable
Location Type Tenure to the Group
it BS my HE HEERIGER
Shop No. 1 on Level 1, Building and land Medium-term lease 99.80%
Heng Ye Building, Wusi Road, BER L i Fh HEFA 4
Shaowu City, Fujian Province,
the PRC
TEBEEZEARRD
EMREEXERE
— -

EREEZERERAR
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21. GOODWILL 21. &8
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Cost 5% 3
As at 1 April RMUA—H 922,147 909,040
Additional amounts recognised from RAFEELEBEBESH
business combination occurring during FriEsd 2 BAIMFRIR
the year (Note 25) (HFEE25) 2,506 =
Deregistration of a subsidiary i —EE AR (333) =
Exchange realignment AR (8,476) 13,107
As at 31 March R=A=+-—8H 915,844 922,147
Accumulated impairment losses Rt EEBE
As at 1 April ROEA—H 785,524 785,169
Impairment loss recognised during the year RAREEE R 2B EEE 35,459 336
Deregistration of a subsidiary FEiH— KB A A (333) -
Exchange realignment AR (14) 19
As at 31 March R=B=+—H 820,636 785,524
Carrying amounts REE
As at 31 March R=A=+—H 95,208 136,623

190 WANIJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019
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GOODWILL - continued

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31

21.

Impairment test for CGUs containing goodwill

The management of the Group tests goodwill annually for

impairment, or more frequently if there are indications that

goodwill might be impaired.

For purpose of impairment testing, goodwill has been

allocated to the following CGUs. The carrying amounts of

goodwill (net of accumulated impairment loss) as at 31

A 0 2 R W Rk

March 2019 E=Z—hE=A=1+—HIEFE

[} b |
ERAHBZREEE B MR ENR
AEBEREESFET -—RABERER
& AR ERREREE A EE ERER
FRE AT RE R -

BBENERAMS TEE2METIRE
EEXEBN-RZZE-—NEFRZZ—N\F=
B=+—HB HEZKRAEE (NKREHE

March 2019 and 2018 are allocated as follows: BEE) DERNT :

2019 2018
—E—hEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#T TET

Mingxi County Trading Company Limited PEHREHEEZERAF

(“Mingxi”) and its subsidiaries (TEZDEREKB AR

— provision of hemodialysis treatment and ~ — 3 MEEAER
consultancy services B RS 95,208 136,623
ERSEREERAR 191

2018/2019 R
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21.

192

GOODWILL - continued

Impairment test for CGUs containing goodwill

- continued

Quanzhou Huihao

The recoverable amount of Quanzhou Huihao is the higher
of fair value less cost to disposal or value in use. During
the year 31 March 2018, Quanzhou Huihao recorded
the continuously operating loss, management assessed
recoverable amount based on its fair value less cost of
disposal. During the year ended 31 March 2018, the
directors consider that an impairment loss on goodwill
of approximately HK$336,000 should be recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income.

On 29 March 2019, Quanzhou Huihao was deregistered.

Mingxi

As the carrying amount of this CGU is calculated to be
lower than its recoverable amount, an impairment losses of
approximately HK$35,459,000 was recognised during the
year ended 31 March 2019 (2018: HK$Nil).

The recoverable amount of this CGU is determined based on
a value in use calculation which uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period and with discount rates of
11.99% per annum (2018: 14.72%). Cash flow projections
during the budgeted period are based on the same
expected gross margins throughout the budget period. The
management considers that it is prudent and appropriate to
adopt a zero% annual growth rate of cash flows projections
for each flows beyond the budgeted period. This growth
rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for
the market. Management determined the budgeted gross
margin based on past performance and its expectations for

the market development.

WANIJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE=—F—NE=A=+—HILFE

GOODWILL - continued

Impairment test for CGUs containing goodwill

— continued

Mingxi — continued

The Impairment loss was mainly attributable to the following

factors:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

decrease in the sale revenue from and number of
treatments provided by jointly-operated hemodialysis
treatment centers, which was particularly caused by
the change in number of patient visits in the jointly-
operated hemodialysis treatment centers located in
Yanzhou, Jining City, Shandong Province, the PRC
due to the keen competition as a result of the launch
of promotion campaigns by a nearby state-owned

hospital;

the postponement in the application for enrolment
of the hemodialysis treatment centers in the medical
insurance list which resulted in the delay of the

business plan of the Group; and

decrease in sale revenue from hemodialysis equipment

trading.

Based on the above factors, the directors consider

that an impairment loss on goodwill of approximately
HK$35,459,000 should be recognised in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Any adverse change in the assumptions used in the value in

use calculation would result in further losses.

21.

e
AHEEZRSEE B OEERNR
ol |

B % —
RREBRERARA T EERE:

(i) HEEEZMBENBETLER
BV 85 & A R BT 1R R B9 06 BUR BURL
DoRHERAMII - FEBERE
TEERERFRNHIEFM
BEMRFELREEEDRZME
HEEE 2 MBENAEDLHRE
BRDARBEZL

(i REBEREBZAZTMBENE
BROZRBIERE MEHRARE
Bz X¥BT K R

(i) REBMRBTREZHEERAR
J

N
7

\S

o

ERNERZ ESRA HEHEERA
#935,459,000 B T AR R e Bm & H it
2ENBERAER ARGTEFEREEZ
TEBRRBEFTAIANEDHEEZE—
HEB
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22.

23.

194

INVENTORIES

Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial

position comprise:

22. F8

REEUBRRR2FERSE:

2019 2018

—EB-hF —E-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FiET

Finished goods SR 10,920 62,136

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 23. BOREMBRRARZE
DEPOSITS
2019 2018
—E—hEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#T FET
Trade receivables B 5 EWRRIE 31,746 99,890
Less: Allowance for credit losses (HKFRS 9) 8 : S EEEEE (EBMBRE
Z B %E95%) (11,726) =
Less: Impairment loss recognised in respect 8 : ¥ Z 5 B W E B R EEE
of trade receivables (HKAS 39) (B BEFH2ERIZE395R) - (7,070)
20,020 92,820
Bills receivable EWEE - 249
Prepayments and deposits paid EARERESES 29,737 15,126
Other receivables Hih e 18 11,204 14,428
60,961 122,623
Less: Impairment loss recognised in B E th BRI HE R Y
respect of other receivables REEE (2,188) (4,170)
58,773 118,453

WANIJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019




23.

I

el

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A 0 2 R W Rk

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE=—F—NE=A=+—HILFE

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

DEPOSITS - continued

No bills receivables as at 31 March 2019. As at 31 March
2018, bills receivable of approximately HK$249,000 will be
matured within six months after the end of the reporting
period. All the bills receivable are denominated in RMB.

Included in the Group’s prepayment and deposits paid were
the prepayment expense of HK$23,059,000 (2018: HK$Nil)
which related to the consulting service of new hemodialysis

treatment centers.

Included in the Group’s other receivables were the
value added tax (“VAT") recoverable of approximately
HK$2,251,000 as at 31 March 2019 (2018: HK$4,434,000).

Payment terms with customers from the pharmaceutical
wholesale and distribution business, pharmaceutical retail
chain business and hemodialysis treatment and consultancy
service business are mainly on credit. Invoices are normally
payable from 30 to 90 days (2018: 30 to 90 days) for
pharmaceutical wholesale and distribution business and 5 to
365 days (2018: 5 to 365 days) for hemodialysis treatment
and consultancy service business respectively of issuance of
invoices. The ageing analysis of the gross amount of trade
receivables based on the invoices date is as follows:

23. HARREMBERRARES

=

RZBE-NE=A=+—H #HERKE
B-RZEBE—N\FE=A=+—H EBKE
1E#9249,00078 TR M E AR Z 1B A
AEH - TERNEEIIUARESE-

it

3

FTARKEzEAREREfREATENS
FIAR & 23,059,000/ (=& —/\F:
TE o) H D EFMORENAEHR O
BHAREER-

R-ZFB-—hE=B=+—H TALXE
B H i e Y5k 1E 2 AT W BB E L ([E1E
)8 AE2,251,0008 T (== — \F:
4,434,000/ 7T ) °

ERMBROHER ERTEEHEFER
RMBEENMEERZARBELEFN
NRAFRFTEATRBR -ERIER
28 I AR MR E MR B K A 7 RS
EBNRIE-—RED BINREZ2E B H
%30Z90H (==& — /\F :30890H) &
52365H (ZZE—\F :583650) A%
T RBEAMNE S ERREAZENR
WO :

2019 2018

—E-AE | —B-N\E

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FE T

Within 90 days 90H LW 21,070 58,396
91-180 days 91£180H 1,254 21,232
181-365 days 181£365H 3,290 13,192
Over 365 days HiB365H 6,132 7,070
31,746 99,890

EREEZERERAR
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE=—E—hE=A=+—HILEE

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 23. B REMBERKRERES

DEPOSITS - continued

As at 31 March 2018, trade receivables disclosed above
include amounts which are past due at the end of the
reporting period but against which the Group has not
recognised an allowance for doubtful receivables because
there has not been a significant change in credit quality and
the amounts are still considered recoverable. The Group does
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over
these balances nor does it have a legal right to offset against
any amounts owed by the Group to the counterparty. The
individually impaired receivables related to customers that
were in financial difficulties and the directors assessed that

the amounts are not expected to be recovered.

—#&
RZB-NFE=BA=+—H ' EXFHE
ZESEWFEEERREHRCS B
EAEETERIABUREREZ2SE
FREAEBRRENGEEZRLEERS
B) B4R 5 0 F U E o A5 B 30 S 0 1
EEBBEEMERRIEMEENR
BHE FMELEERANTULAEELERRS
I F A FRIEEIE 84 o 18 BIRE A FE IR
HRESREVMBERBENE S ESNTME
AEFZESETERE-

Ageing of impaired trade receivables ERERSERRAZER
2018
—E-N\E&
HK$'000
FHET
Over 365 days HiB365H 7,070
Ageing of past due but not impaired BEMEXRREEZRE
2018
—2-N\F
HK$’000
FHET
Overdue by: EEHE
1 =90 days 1£290H 5,791
91 — 180 days 91&180H 8,746
Over 180 days Hi1B180H 4,152
18,689

WANIJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE=—F—NE=A=+—HILFE

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
DEPOSITS - continued

Ageing of past due but not impaired - continued
As at 31 March 2018, included in the Group's trade
receivables balances are balances with aggregate carrying
amount of approximately HK$18,689,000 which was past
due at the end of the reporting period for which the Group

not provided for impairment loss.

Movement in the provision for impairment loss

recognised in respect of trade receivables is summarised

23. HARREMBERRARES

—#&

BEMERREZRE &
RZEBE-NF=A=+—0 fTAKXE
BESEWRREBELEHRT ZRELED
18,689,000 T HRMEM RS BE 2
mEe AEEUEMETREESR

BE 50 5 TR e SR R L (O
BRmT :

as follow:
2018
—E-N\F
HK$'000
FET
As at 1 April REOB—H 5,663
Impairment losses recognised ERAZBEEE 1,113
Impairment losses reversed EREZRERE (349)
Exchange realignment & A% 643
As at 31 March R=B=+—8 7,070

As at 31 March 2018, included in allowance for doubtful
debts are individually impaired trade receivables with an
aggregate balance of HK$7,070,000. For overdue debts,
based on the past default experience, payment history of
customers and subsequent settlement, the Group assessed
the corporate customers for potential impairment losses.
Full provision has been made for individual trade receivables
aged over one year with no subsequent settlement as
historical evidence shows that such amounts are not

recoverable.

RZB-NFE=A=+—H0 ' RE&MESD
SEAEBIRE 2 B 5 WK IE 2 #8458
#37,070,000/8 T ° EIHABEHE M S » A&
EREBAWENREZLR  BEARK
RHRHAZEETGLERF ZEER
BEEB-AAFAEAKRREB—F2HE
WREHEZERNE S ERKEELE2HE
BE FERARBEBAIRBRET HED
BEEEWE -

EREEZERERAR
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE=—E—hE=A=+—HILEE

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 23. B REMBERKRERES

DEPOSITS - continued

Ageing of past due but not impaired - continued
Movement in the provision for impairment loss of the
Group recognised in respect of the other receivables is

summarised as follows:

— iR

B@REXREEZER &
BHEMERRARLZFRERHESR
WREEBEMT -

2018

—E-N\F

HK$'000

FET

As at 1 April ROEUA—H 915
Impairment loss recognised ERRAZRERIE 2,987
Exchange realignment & WA 268
As at 31 March R=A=+—H 4,170

The individually impaired other receivables relate to other
receivables that were in default or delinquency in payments
and only a portion or none of the receivables is expected
to be recovered. The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements over this balance. The remaining
balance of other receivables is neither past due nor impaired
and relates to a large number of independent parties for

whom there was no recent history of default.

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other
receivables and deposit paid for the year ended 31 March
2019 under expected credit loss of HKFRS 9 are set out in
Note 5(b).

WANIJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE=—F—NE=A=+—HILFE

24. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a)

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, all of

which are limited liability companies, at 31 March 2019

are as follows:

24. B AT ZH*E
RZE-hE=B=+—HB &2
AZEENBLAR (HHBERAITF)
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(a)

Particulars of
Place and date of issued and fully
Incorporation paid ordinary Percentage of equity, effective
Name of registration Class of share capital interest and voting power held
subsidiaries and operation share held Iregistered capital by the Company Principal activities
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Fujian Huihao Sihai Pharmaceutical The PRC/ Registered RMB55,856,350 - - - 99.80 Pharmaceutical
Chain Company Limited 30 November retail chain
("Huihao Sihai") * 2001 business in the PRC

BREFMBBEEHERAT HE/ ARER AR #55,856,3507C REBEREE
([Egmsl): “22-£4-A=tH BHEER

Fujian Province Huihao City Huihao The PRC/ Registered RMB91,500,000 - - 78.14 78.14 Pharmaceutical
Pharmaceutical Company Limited 9 July 2008 wholesale and
("Fuzhou Huihao") * distribution business

in the PRC

BRABNTEAEXERAT HE/ AfER AR%91,500,0007 REEERHER
(IENZEs]) “E2ENELANR PEEH

Putian Huihao Medicine Company The PRC/ Registered RMB10,000,000 - = 78.14 78.14 Pharmaceutical
Limited (“Putian Huihao") # 11 July 2008 wholesale and

distribution business
in the PRC

RRERIHBEARAR e/ ifmas  ARE10,0000007% REBERHER
(FEmEF)* “EE\FLAt-H PEER

Fujian Huiming Medicine Company The PRC/ Registered RMB20,000,000 - - 78.14 78.14 Pharmaceutical
Limited ("Fujian Huiming") * 10 July 2008 wholesale and

distribution business
in the PRC

BRESHBEERAA HE/ EMER AR#20,000,0007 REEZERHER
((EE=H)): “2ENELATH DEEH

Huihao Medicine (Quanzhou) The PRC/ Registered RMB10,000,000 - - - 78.14 Pharmaceutical
Company Limited ("Quanzhou 17 May 2007 wholesale and
Huihao") ** distribution business

in the PRC

ERBE (RN ERAR HE/ AfER AR%10,000,0007 RAEERHER
(TRNES]) “ERLERATLA PEEH

Lianan Kidney Medical Management The PRC/ Registered RMB20,000,000 - = 78.14 78.14 Hemodialysis treatment
Company Limited * 15 June 2012 and consultancy service

business in the PRC

BRENBRERARAT HE/ AfER AR%20,000,0007% R EmREARR A

“E-ZEXATEA HARBER

Putian lianan Kidney Medical The PRC/ Registered RMB1,000,000 - = 78.14 78.14 Hemodialysis treatment
Management Company Limited * 8 November 2016 and consultancy service

business in the PRC

ERARZENBRERARAT HE/ AfER AR#1,000,0007% R B REARR S

“E-RET-ANEH HARBER

Wuhua Yongke Kidney Hemodialysis The PRC/ Registered RMB3,000,000 - = 78.14 = Hemodialysis treatment
Company Limited ** 28 November 2016 and consultancy service

business in the PRC
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